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HISCOX DEDICATED CORPORATE MEMBER LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT

The Directors present their strategic report, Directors’ report and financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020, which have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs).

The Company is a Lloyd's Corporate Name investing in the underwriting capacity of syndicates in the Lloyd's of
London market. The Company has continued to follow the strategy of participating on only Syndicates 33 and
3624, which are managed by Hiscox Syndicates Limited, with the intention of generating profits without endangering
the capital of the Company. Syndicate 33 is one of the largest composite syndicates at Lloyd's and has an A.M.
Best Syndicate rating of A (Excellent). Syndicate 3624, which receives only capacity from this Company,
commenced underwriting on 1 January 2009. The principal activity of both Syndicates 33 and 3624 remains the
transaction of general insurance and reinsurance business.

Lloyd’s has an A (Excellent) rating from A.M. Best, an A+ (Strong) rating from Standard & Poor’'s and an AA- (Very
strong) rating from Fitch. Both syndicates benefit from the Lioyd’s brand and chain of security.

The Company provides capacity on the following Syndicates to underwrite at Lloyd's of London:

Year of account 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Syndicate 33 (Em) 834 1,161 1,015 1,233 1,233
Syndicate 33 ($m)* 1,140 1,587 1,388 1,686 1,686
Syndicate 3624 (£Em) 460 400 360 400 400
Syndicate 3624 ($m)* 629 547 492 547 547
Total (Em) 1,294 1,561 1,375 1,633 1,633
Total ($m)* 1,769 2,134 1,880 2,233 2,233

* Converted at the closing rate at 31 December 2020
Principal risks and uncertainties

The Company’s primary source of income is derived from its participation in the underwriting activities of Syndicates
33 and 3624. The Company also receives investment income on its own investment assets, including those held
as Funds at Lloyd's . The principal risks and uncertainties of this business are detailed in Note 3 and include:
underwriting risk, reserving risk, financial risk, credit risk and operational risk.

key performance indicators

We consider that the key financial performance indicators (KPIs) are those that communicate the underwriting
performance of the Company to the shareholders. The KPls comprise:

Restated*

2020 2019 Movement

$000 $000 $000

Gross premium written 1,821,579 1,891,815 (70,236)
Gross premium earned 1,893,866 1,889,749 4,117
Net premium earned 648,749 646,944 1,805
(Loss) / Profit for the financial year (56,490) 14,161 (70,651)
% % %

Claims ratio 59 47 12
Commission ratio 53 52 1
Expense ratio 8 5 3
Combined ratio 120 104 16

*The prior-year result has been restated for an incorrect calculation of expenses charged during the 2019 calendar
year. The expenses spanned both the 2018 and 2019 years of account and did not affect the previous distribution
to members.



HISCOX DEDICATED CORPORATE MEMBER LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT continued

The claims ratio is calculated as claims and net foreign exchange gains/(losses) over net premium earned. The
commission ratio is calculated as acquisition costs over net premium earned. The expense ratio is calculated as
administrative and other expenses over net premium earned. The combined ratio is the sum of the claims ratio, the
commission ratio and the expense ratio.

The historic performance of each year of account the Company participated on, at the point of closure is shown
below:

Return on capacity 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
Year of Year of Year of Year of Year of

account account account account account

% % % % %

Syndicate 33 17 18 7 0 0
Syndicate 3624 4 2 (9) (9) (21)

Result for the year

The loss after taxation for the year ended 31 December 2020 was $56.5 million (2019: profit of $14.1 million as
restated). The 2020 results were mainly driven by Covid-19 losses which were offset by the impact of a significant
improvement in underlying profitability across insurance lines in particular. The Covid-19 losses primarily arose in
the speciality division from contingency exposures and US liability. The company paid an interim dividend of $108.5
million during 2020 (2019: $nil). The final dividend payable is $nil (2019: $nil). The shareholders’ equity is $53.7
million (2019: $218.7 million as restated). The lower than prior year performance is driven by the 2020 financial loss
in both Syndicate 33 and Syndicate 3624. The Company'’s share of the Syndicate loss is reduced through the quota
share in place with Hiscox Insurance Company (Bermuda) Limited and the Company’s own profits achieved through
positive investment return. On April 1, 2021, Hiscox Syndicates Limited as managing agent for Lloyd’s Syndicate
3624 and Hiscox Insurance Company (Bermuda) Limited entered into a healthcare loss portfolio transfer
reinsurance agreement, see note 26.

Statement by the directors in performance of their statutory duties in accordance with s172 (1) Companies
Act 2006

The Board of Directors of the Company both individually and collectively act in the way they consider in good faith
would be most likely to promote the success of the Company for the benefit of its members as a whole (having
regard to the stakeholders and considerations set out in $172 (1) (a-f) of the Act). In decisions taken to the year
ended 318t December 2020, we would reference our approach to the business plan and the supporting control
environment which deliver good outcomes for the Company and wider stakeholders. In achieving this, the following
areas are highlighted:

a) Our Company’s plan was designed to have a long term beneficial impact on the Company and to contribute
to the success in delivering the business of an insurance holding Company. We continue to operate our
business within a structured control environment. Hiscox values reiterate this longer term perspective with
the desire to build a business that lasts and that everyone is proud to be part of.

b) All employees are employed by Hiscox Underwriting Group Services Ltd (“HUGS"). Hiscox wants to build
teams that are as diverse as our customers and create a vibrant work environment where all employees
can thrive. Steps are in place for workforce engagement, training and development, employee networks,
regular communication updates, launch events for major projects and partners’ events. In 2019, we
became a Living Wage employer in the UK. Hiscox values reiterate that our growth and success has been
built on team work, having shared goals and celebrating together when things go well and supporting each
other when they do not go well. :



HISCOX DEDICATED CORPORATE MEMBER LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT continued

Statement by the directors in performance of their statutory duties in accordance with s172 (1) Companies
Act 2006 continued

c) Time is taken to get to know the people we work with and work for — our customers. Throughout the Hiscox
Group, we think about the implications of our decisions on everyone else in our Group, our industry and
our community, because we are committed to building a sustainable business with a legacy we can all be
proud of. Our success depends on our relationships with a network of experts beyond our business. All of
our activities are informed by appropriate engagement with stakeholders to gain an understanding of our
operating environment and the market in which we operate. We value our suppliers and have a Group
Prompt Payment Policy which states our intention to pay what we owe, when it is owed.

d) Our plan takes into account the impact of the Company’s operations on the community, the environment
and wider societal responsibilities. As a key company within Hiscox, we are part of the Hiscox Economic,
Social and Governance (ESG) approach framework and this ensures that we play a responsible part in
society and our customers and society benefit when times are tough. Like others, we are responding to a
changing climate, and are helping our customers and business partners to adapt through our products and
services. We also evolve as regulation changes and public interest in emerging issues grows. ESG issues
touch many different parts of our business — such as HR, risk, finance, underwriting, investments and the
ESG framework we have developed helps us stay focussed and make an impact. It ensures we are
pragmatic and consistent, teaming Group-wide themes with local market relevance. Our ESG efforts are
measured both internally and externally. Externally, we participate in a number of key ESG indices
including CDP and FTSE4Good, and we reported against TCFD-aligned principles for the first time in our
2019 climate report.

e) The Board of Directors’ intention is to behave responsibly and ensure that the business operates in a
responsible manner with the high standards of business conduct and good governance. There is a clear
policy in place for whistleblowing and this ensures that employees feel empowered to raise concerns in
confidence and without fear of unfair treatment.

f) Weaimto act fairly between members however note that the Company has a sole shareholder.

Energy and Carbon Report (SECR)

Throughout the Hiscox Group, we carefully manage our environmental impact and work with our customers,
suppliers and business partners to respond to the changing climate. This means looking at our operations and how
we can reduce waste — water, electricity and other consumption. It also means investing in areas such as research,
catastrophe modelling and new technologies that improve our underwriting capabilities and benefit our brokers and
customers.

The Hiscox Group energy and carbon footprint covers Scope 1, 2 and selected Scope 3 emissions in 2020. The
footprint is calculated in accordance with the Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Protocol. Scope 1, 2 and 3 emissions reduced
by 45% in 2020 to 2.01 tCO2e per full-time employee (FTE). 2020 was our sixth year as a carbon-neutral business.
Hiscox Group targeted a 15% real-term reduction in our Scope 1, 2 and 3 carbon emissions per FTE by the end of
2020, relative to 2014. While we have achieved this target, having completed a 45% real-term reduction in Scope
1, 2 and 3 carbon emissions per FTE over that period, some of this achievement is as a result of the positive impact
that Covid-19 has had on reducing business travel, which is currently the biggest contributor to our emissions.



HISCOX DEDICATED CORPORATE MEMBER LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT continued

Hiscox Group Energy and Carbon Performance Results

GHG emissions 2020

Activity ooy o eoR
Scope 1 total 467
Naturalgasa.” 3 L 1.710.200 316
Companycars . o 560441 151
Scope 2 total (location-based) 1,565
Electricity (location-based) L - 5,176,118 1,565
Scope 3 total 231
Personal vehicles ' L ] 899,189 = 23{
Total 8,345,946 2,263

Intensity Ratio result for 2020: 2.01 tCO2e per full-time employee (FTE)-

We continue to invest in our in-house capabilities around climate change. We are creating a new climate change
research role to further our understanding of climate-related threats and opportunities, which will contribute to the
ongoing development of the Hiscox view of risk from a climate change perspective, and also to business and
portfolio insights from a risk management perspective. We are also establishing a new climate implementation
group to increase our focus on climate related developments and drive climate-related innovation particularly in our
underwriting, research and modelling. The Company relies on the Group view for energy and carbon reporting. A
specific review will be carried out in 2021 to establish whether a meaningful basis of reporting can be establishefor
UK specific and/or Company specific information.

On behalf of the Board

H A Hussain
Director
12t May 2021



HISCOX DEDICATED CORPORATE MEMBER LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT

Directors

The names of the directors of the Company during the period and to the date of this report are listed on page 2 of
these financial statements. None of the Directors of the Company who served during the year ended 31 December
2020 were underwriting Names at Lloyd's for 2018, 2019, 2020 or 2021 years of accounts.

The directors have no interests in the shares of the Company, nor in any shares of any other Group company other
than in the ultimate parent company, Hiscox Ltd.

Dividend

The Company paid an interim dividend of $108.5 million during the year (2019: $nil). The final dividend payable is
$nil (2019: $nil).

Disclosure of information to auditors

The Directors who held office at the date of approval of this Directors’ report confirm that, so far as they are each
aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditors are unaware; and each Director has
taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a Director to make themselves aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of that information.

Going concern

After making enquiries, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason they continue to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

Through the Company’s participation on the syndicates and hence its share of insurance reserves, it continues to
face exposures to Covid-19. However, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that this does not materially
affect the Company’s ability to continue trading. Through the quarterly reserving cycles, the company, through its
participation in both Syndicate 33 and 3624 continually assess its exposure to insurance losses as a result of Covid-
19 and book these losses accordingly. The Directors have reviewed the Company's forecast solvency position
and are content that this supports the continued use of the going concern basis in preparing the financial
statements.

The Company's cash resources are also managed within the _Group framework. Working capital forecasts, which
have been prepared for the Group as part of its 3 year operating plan demonstrate that the Group has sufficient
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.

As described in note 26, the Company and its reinsurer Hiscox Insurance Company (Bermuda) Limited (HIB)
provide assets under a Security and Trust Deed, charged to Lloyd’s of London, to meet any liabilities they incur
from their interest in Syndicates 33 and 3624. This is known as Funds at Lloyd’s (FAL) and as at 31 December
2020, total FAL assets held were valued at $1,569 million, of which HDCM provided $566 million.

Indemnity insurance

A policy of indemnity insurance cover to the benefit of the directors of the company has been in force during the
year ended 31 December 2020 and at the date of this report.

Political and Charitable Contributions
The Company made no political contributions during the year (2019: $Nil) and no charitable donations (2019: $Nil).
Employees and pension arrangements

All employees are employed by Hiscox Underwriting Group Services Ltd. Its management charge to the Company
includes basic salary cost, employee benefits and pension expenses.



HISCOX DEDICATED CORPORATE MEMBER LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT continued

Business relationships

We have a diverse range of stakeholders whose engagement is critical to our continued success. We engage with,
consider and respond to our stakeholders needs at various levels and as part of the Hiscox Group. Our success
depends on our relationships with a network of experts beyond our business. Our business relationships can be
seen via the core themes in the Hiscox Environmental, Social and Governance Framework.

Environmental — We carefully manage our environmental impact and work with our customers, suppliers and
business partners to respond to the changing climate. For Hiscox, this means looking at our operations and how
we can reduce waste-water, electricity and other consumption helped by a global network of green teams. It also
means investing in areas such as research, catastrophe modelling and new technologies that improve our
underwriting capabilities and benefit our brokers and customers.

Social — We strive to be a good employer, a trusted insurer and a good corporate citizen, recognising that there is
not a ‘one-size-fits-all’ solution to such matters; no claim, person or plight is the same as‘another. We take our
role in the world seriously and so our claims philosophy, our strategy for charitable giving and our employment
practices all contribute to our social narrative. Hiscox’s charitable foundation — The Hiscox Foundation — has been
in place since 1987, along with Hiscox Gives which creates meaningful volunteering opportunities for employees.

Governance — Good governance practices are essential to our day-to-day business of serving customers and
paying claims. Good governance encompasses not just having the appropriate internal controls, policies and
procedures, and structures and oversight; it also requires our employees to be accountable for their actions and
empowered to raise their hand if something goes wrong. Naturally it also means complying with the laws and
regulations that are relevant to our Company.

Independent Auditors

Pursuant to Section 487 of the Companies Act 2006, the auditors will be deemed to be reappointed and
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP will therefore continue in office.

Future Developments .
Syndicates 33 and 3624 will continue to transact insurance business and HDCM will continue to be the Corporate
member.

On behalf of the board

S

H A Hussain
Director
12t May 2021



HISCOX DEDICATED CORPORATE MEMBER LIMITED

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulation.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial stateménts for each financial year. Under that law the
directors have prepared the financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

Under company law, directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period. In
preparing the financial statements, the directors are required to:

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

o state whether applicable IFRSs as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) have
been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

¢ make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

¢ prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
company will continue in business.

The directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company
and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.

Directors’ confirmations
In the case of each director in office at the date the directors’ report is approved:

e so far as the director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the company’s auditors are
unaware; and

¢ they have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director in order to make themselves aware
of any relevant audit information and to establish that the company’s auditors are aware of that information.



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF HISCOX DEDICATED CORPORATE MEMBER
LIMITED

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion
In our opinion, Hiscox Dedicated Corporate Member Limited's financial statements:

e give a true and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 31 December 2020 and of its loss and cash
flows for the year then ended;

e have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB); and

e have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report and Financial Statements (the “Annual
Report”), which comprise: the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020; the statement of profit or
loss, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and the notes to the
financial statements, which include a description of the significant accounting policies

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)") and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under ISAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We believe that the audlt evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit

of the financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC's Ethical Standard, as applicable to other entities of
public interest, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we declare that non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical
Standard were not provided.

We have provided no non-audit services to the company in the period under audit.
Conclusions relating to going concern

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the company's ability to continue as a going
concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this conclusion is not a guarantee as to the
company's ability to continue as a going concern.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.

10



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF HISCOX DEDICATED CORPORATE MEMBER
LIMITED

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and
our auditors’ report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial
statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to
the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material
inconsistency or material misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a
material misstatement of the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic report and Directors’ Report, we also considered whether the disclosures required by
the UK Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on our work undertaken in the course of the audit, the Companies Act 2006 requires us also to report certain
opinions and matters as described below.

Strategic Report and Directors’ Report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic report
and Directors' Report for the year ended 31 December 2020 is consistent with the financial statements and has
been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit,
we did not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic report and Directors' Report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit
Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the financial statements, the
directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework
and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. The directors are also responsible for such internal control
as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in
line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including
fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below.

11



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF HISCOX DEDICATED CORPORATE MEMBER
LIMITED

Based on our understanding of the company and industry, we identified that the principal risks of non-compliance
with laws and regulations related to breaches of UK regulatory principles, such as those governed by the Prudential
Regulation Authority and the Financial Conduct Authority, and those regulations set by the Council of Lloyd’s, and
we considered the extent to which non-compliance might have a material effect on the financial statements. We
also considered those laws and regulations that have a direct impact on the financial statements such as the
Companies Act 2006. We evaluated management’s incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the
financial statements (including the risk of override of controls), and determined that the principal risks were related
to revenue recognition and management override of controls. Audit procedures performed included:

e Discussions with senior management involved in the Risk and Compliance functions, including consideration of
known or suspected instances of non-compliance with faws and regulation and fraud;

o Assessment of any matters reported on the company’s whistleblowing helpline and fraud register and the resuits
of management's investigation of such matters;

+ Reading key correspondence with Lloyd's, the Prudential Regulation Authority and the Financial Conduct

Authority in relation to compliance with laws and regulations;

Reviewing relevant meeting minutes including those of the Audit Committee;

Testing journal entries identified in accordance with our risk assessment; and,

Identifying and testing estimated premium income on a sample basis; and,

Designing audit procedures to incorporate unpredictability around the nature, timing or extent of our testing.

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above. We are less likely to become aware of
instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations that are not closely related to events and transactions
reflected in the financial statements. Also, the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher
than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example,
forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through collusion.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website
at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors’ report.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving
these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is
shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Other required reporting
Companies Act 2006 exception reporting

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

we have not obtained all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us; or

certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

VP4

Robert Cordock (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

12 May 2021
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HISCOX DEDICATED CORPORATE MEMBER LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

For the year ended 31 December 2020

Restated*
2020 2019
Notes $000 $000
Income .
Gross premiums written 1,821,579 1,891,815
Outward reinsurance premiums (1,199,616) (1,269,483)
Net premiums written 621,963 622,332
Gross premiums earned 1,893,866 1,889,749
Premiums ceded to reinsurers (1,245,117) (1,242,805)
Net premiums earned 648,749 646,944
Investment result 6 55,200 49,776
Total income 703,949 696,720
Expenses
Claims and claim adjustment expenses, net of reinsurance* 22 (379,678) (306,142)
Expenses for the acquisition of insurance contracts* 5 (342,800) (339,241)
Administration expenses* 5 (52,277) (34,074)
Other expenses 5 (525) (941)
Net foreign exchange gains* 5 3,970 603
Total expenses* (771,310) (679,795)
Results of operating activities* (67,361) 16,925
Finance costs 5 (88) (495)
(Loss)/Profit before tax* (67,449) 16,430
Tax expense/(credit)* 8 10,959 (2,269)
(Loss)/Profit for the year (all attributable to owners of the
Company)* (56,490) 14,161

*See note 2.2

All of the operations of the Company are continuing.

There are no recognised gains or losses in the accounting period other than those dealt with in the statement of
profit and loss, therefore no statement of other comprehensive income has been presented.

The notes on pages 17 to 51 form an integral part of this document.

13



HISCOX DEDICATED CORPORATE MEMBER LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

At 31 December 2020

Restated*
2020 2019
Notes $000 $000
Assets
Intangible assets 9 33,082 33,082
Deferred tax* 16 79,806 39,710
Current tax - 16
Deferred acquisition costs 10 205,923 246,544
Financial assets carried at fair value 1 2,195,851 2,102,753
Reinsurance assets 17 3,438,519 3,229,348
Financial assets at amortised cost including insurance
receivables* 12 777,800 668,940
Cash and cash equivalents 13 180,980 208,270
Total assets* 6,911,961 6,528,663
Equity and liabilities
Shareholders’ equity
Share capital 14 2,025 2,025
Foreign currency reserve 15 22,049 22,049
Retained earnings* 29,636 194,598
Total equity (all attributable to owners of the
Company)* 53,710 218,672
Deferred tax* 16 53,512 33,400
Insurance liabilities 17, 21 4,582,757 4,254,077
Financial liabilities at amortised cost 19 2,203,850 1,991,794
Tax liabilities 18 18,132 30,720
Total liabilities 6,858,251 6,309,991
Total equity and liabilities* 6,911,961 6,528,663

*See note 2.2

The notes on pages 17 to 51 form an integral part of this document.

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors, who authorised them to be signed on its behalf

on 12 May 2021 by:

A

H A Hussain
Director

Hiscox Dedicated Corporate Member 1
Registered number 2858319
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HISCOX DEDICATED CORPORATE MEMBER LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Restated* Foreign
Share Retained currency Total
Notes capital earnings reserve equity
$000 $000 $000 $000
Balance at 1 January 2019 2,025 180,437 22,049 204,511
Profit / (loss) for the year (all attributable to the
owners of the company)* - 14,161 - 14,161
Total recognised other comprehensive income /
(expense) for the year - - - -
Dividends paid to owners of the company 23 - - - -
Balance at 31 December 2019 2,025 *194,598 22,049 *218,672
*See note 2.2
Balance at 1 January 2020 2,025 194,598 22,049 218,672
Profit / (loss) for the year (all attributable to the
owners of the company) - (56,490) - (56,490)
Total recognised other comprehensive income /
(expense) for the year - - - - -
Dividends paid to owners of the company 23 - (108,472) - (108,472)
Balance at 31 December 2020 2,025 29,636 22,049 53,710

*See note 2.2
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HISCOX DEDICATED CORPORATE MEMBER LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Restated*
2020 2019
Notes $000 $000
(Loss)/Profit before tax* (67,449) 16,430
Adjustments for: .
Net foreign exchange (gains)* (3,970) (603)
Effect of exchange rate fluctuation on cash presented separately 2,633 697
Finance charges 88 495
Deferred acquisition costs 40,621 11,952
Insurance and reinsurance contracts 119,509 41,674
Other assets and liabilities* 115,784 47,031
Tax asset 17 (17)
Deferred tax* (19,985) 2,155
Tax liabilities {12,588) 30,720
Cash inflow/(outflow) from operations 174,660 150,534
Interest received 29,514 25,535
Current tax paid* (1,629) (2,269)
Net cash flows from operating activities 202,545 173,800
Purchase of equity and debt instruments** (1,782,387) (2,292,266)
Sale of equity and debt instruments** 1,714,975 2,141,295
Interest and investment income (29,514) (25,535)
Net fair value (gains) on financial investments** (25,686) (24,241)
Net cash flows from investing activities (122,612) (200,747)
Finance charges (88) (495)
Distributions made to owners of the company (108,472) -
Net cash flows from financing activities (108,560) (495)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (28,627) (27,442)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 208,270 235,806
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (28,627) (27,442)
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents* 1,337 (94)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 13 180,980 208,270

*See note 2.2
The notes on pages 17 to 51 form an integral part of this document.

The purchase, maturity and disposal of financial assets are part of the Company's insurance activities and are
therefore classified as an operating cashflow.

A significant proportion of the transactions including dividend and tax payments are settled via intercompany
balances and as such, the movements in the balances are classified as changes in operational assets and liabilities.

Cash and cash equivalents held by the Company of $26.4m (2019: $19.0m) are not available for immediate use by
the Company outside of the Lloyd’s syndicates within which they are held and Funds at Lloyd's.

** “Purchase and sales of equity and debt instruments” and “Net fair value (gains) on financial investments” have
been re-presented due to misstatement in the prior year. This does not result in any change to the net cash flows
from financial activities.
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HISCOX DEDICATED CORPORATE MEMBER LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. General information and statement of compliance
1.1 General information

Hiscox Dedicated Corporate Member Limited (the Company) is a private company, limited by shares, and
registered in England and Wales under the Companies Act 2006. For the period under review the Company's
operations and principal activities are investing in the underwriting capacity of syndicates in the Lloyd's of
London market.

In view of the several but not joint liability of underwriting members at Lloyd's for the transactions of syndicates
in which they participate, the Company's attributable share of the transactions, assets and liabilities of the
syndicates the Company participates on have been included in the financial statements.

1.2 Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) and interpretations issued by the International Accounting Standards in conformity with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Since 2002, the standards adopted by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) have been
referred to as IFRS. The standards from prior years continue to bear the title ‘International Accounting
Standards’ (IAS). Insofar as a particular standard is not explicitly referred to, the two terms are used in these
financial statements synonymously. Compliance with IFRS includes the adoption of interpretations issued by
the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC).

The Company currently applies IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts which specifies the financial reporting for
insurance contracts. The standard was issued by the IASB as the first phase in their project to develop a
comprehensive standard for insurance contracts. Accordingly, to the extent that IFRS 4 does not specify the
recognition or measurement of insurance contracts, transactions reported in these financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with another comprehenswe body of accounting prmmples for insurance
contracts, namely accounting principles generally accepted in the UK.

2. Significant accounting policies
2.1. Basis of preparation

The financial statements are compiled on a going concern basis and prepared on the historical cost basis
except that certain financial instruments including derivative instruments, are measured at fair value. The
statement of financial position of the Company is presented in order of increasing liquidity. The accounting
policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented.

The following new standards and, amendments to standards, that are reIeVant for the Company are effective
for annual periods beginning after 1 January 2020 and have not been applied in preparing these financial
statements:

The amendments to published standards include:

- Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business .
The amendment to IFRS 3 clarifies that to be considered a business, an integrated set of activities and assets
must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create output. Furthermore, it clarified that a business can exist without including all of the inputs and
processes needed to create outputs. These amendments had no impact on the Company’s financial
statements, but may impact future periods should the Company enter into any business combinations.
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HISCOX DEDICATED CORPORATE MEMBER LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

2.

Significant accounting policies continued

- Amendments to IFRS 7, IFRS 9 and IAS 39 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

The amendments to IFRS 9 and IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement provide a
number of reliefs, which apply to all hedging relationships that are directly affected by interest rate benchmark
reform. A hedging relationship is affected if the reform gives rise to uncertainties about the timing and/or
amount of benchmark-based cash flows of the hedged item or the hedging instrument. These amendments
had no impact on the Company'’s fi nanC|aI statements as it does not have any interest rate hedge relationships.

- Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 Definition of Material

The amendments provide a new definition of material that states ‘information is material if omitting, misstating
or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements, which provide financial information about
a specific reporting entity’. The amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of
information, either individually or in combination with other information, in the context of the financial
statements. A misstatement of information is material if it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions
made by the primary users. These amendments had no impact on the Company s financial statements of, nor
is there expected to be any future impact to, the Company.

- Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued on 29 March 2018

The Conceptual Framework is not a standard, and none of the concepts contained therein override the
concepts or requirements in any standard. The purpose of the Conceptual Framework is to assist the IASB in
developing standards, to help preparers develop consistent accounting policies where there is no applicable
standard in place and to assist all parties to understand and interpret the standards. The revised Conceptual
Framework includes some new concepts, provides updated definitions and recognition criteria for assets and
liabilities and clarifies some important concepts. These amendments had no impact on the Company’s financial
statements.

No new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations effective for annual periods beginning on or

after 1 January 2020 are expected to have a material impact on the financial statements and have not been
applied in preparing these financial statements.
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HISCOX DEDICATED CORPORATE MEMBER LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

2.

22

2.3

Significant accounting policies continued
Changes to comparative amounts
The prior period result has been restated by $9.2 million for an incorrect calculation of expenses recharged to

Syndicate 3624. As a result of the prior period misstatement the financial statements have been impacted as
follows:

Effect of prior
period adjustment
As reported at 31 December
previously 2019 : Restated
The impact on statement of profit and loss $000 $000 $000
Claims and claim adjustment expenses, net of ’
reinsurance (307,025) 883 (306,142)
Expenses for the acquisition of insurance contracts (343,881) 4,640 (339,241)
Administration expenses (39,481) 5,407 (34,074)
Net foreign exchange gains 193 410 603
Tax expense (114) (2,155) (2,269)
Profit for the year 4,976 9,185 14,161
The impact on statement of financial position:
Financial assets at amortised cost including
insurance receivables 657,600 11,340 668,940
Deferred tax (8,465) 2,155 (6,310)
Retained earnings (185,413) (9,185) (194,598)
The impact on statement of changes in equity:
| Profit / (loss) for the year 4,976 9,185 14,161 |
The impact on statement of cash flows:
Profit before tax ' . © 5,090 11,340 16,430
Net foreign exchange gains 193 (796) (603)
Other assets and liabilities 58,371 (11,340) 47,031
Deferred tax (8,465) 2,155 (6,310)
Current tax paid (114) (2,155) (2,269)
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash
equivalents (890) 796 (94)

Insurance contracts
2.3.1.Classification

The Company issues short-term casualty and property insurance contracts that transfer significant insurance
risk.

2.3.2.Recognition and measurement
Written gross and outwards reinsurance premiums comprise premiums on contracts incepting during the
financial year. Written premiums are disclosed gross of commission payable to intermediaries and exclude
taxes and duties levied on premiums.

Premium written include an estimate of gross premiums written during the year that have not yet been notified
by the financial year-end (pipeline premiums).

Outwards reinsurance premiums are also disclosed gross of commissions and profit participations recoverable
from reinsurers.

19



HISCOX DEDICATED CORPORATE MEMBER LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

2.

Significant accounting policies continued

Claims and associated expenses are charged to profit or loss as incurred based on the estimated liability for
compensation owed to contract holders or third parties damaged by the contract holders. They include direct
and indirect claims settlement costs and arise from events that have occurred up to the date of the statement
of financial position even if they have not yet been reported to the Company. The Company does not discount
its liabilities for unpaid claims. Liabilities for unpaid claims are estimated using the input of assessments for
individual cases reported to the Company and statistical analysis for the claims incurred but not reported, and
an estimate of the expected ultimate cost of more complex claims that may be affected by external factors e.g.
court decisions.

2.3.3.Deferred acquisition costs (DAC)

Commissions and other direct and indirect costs that vary with and are related to securing new contracts and
renewing existing contracts are capitalised as deferred acquisition costs. All other costs are recognised as
expenses when incurred. DAC are amortised over the terms of the policies as premium is earned.

2.3.4.Unexpired Risk

Provision is made for unexpired risks arising from general business where the expected value of the claims
and expenses attributable to the unexpired periods of policies in force at the balance sheet date exceeds the
unearned premiums provision in relation to such policies after the deduction of any acquisition costs deferred.
The provision for unexpired risks is separated by business unit which are managed together.

2.3.5.Liability adequacy test

The Company tests the adequacy of its unearned premium liability by comparing current estimates of future
claims and claims handling expenses attributable to the unexpired periods of policies at the balance sheet
date to the unearned premium liability net of acquisition costs. Any deficiency is recognised in the income
statement. The related deferred acquisition costs are first written down and any additional liability required is
then recognised as an unexpired risk reserve (URR). In 2020, the Company has recognised a loss due to this
test and established an URR in relation to ongoing exposure to contingency business. The total estimate for
URR gross of reinsurers’ shares as at 31 December 2020 was $31.5 million (2019: nil). The total estimate for
URR net of reinsurers’ shares as at 31 December 2020 was $9.2 million (2019: nil). If this estimation were to
prove inadequate, the unexpired risk reserve could be understated.

2.3.6.0utward reinsurance contracts held

Contracts entered into by the Company, with reinsurers, under which the Company is compensated for losses
on one or more insurance or reinsurance contracts and that meet the classification requirements for insurance
contracts, are classified as insurance contracts held. Contracts that do not meet these classification
requirements are classified as financial assets.

The benefits to which the Company is entitled under outwards reinsurance contracts are recognised as
reinsurance assets. These assets consist of short-term balances due from reinsurers (classified within financial
assets at amortised cost) as well as longer-term receivables (classified as reinsurance assets) that are
dependent on the expected claims and benefits arising under the related reinsured insurance contracts.

Reinsurance liabilities primarily comprise premiums payable for ‘outwards’ reinsurance contracts. These
amounts are recognised in profit or loss proportionally over the period of the contract. Receivables and
payables are recognised when due.
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HISCOX DEDICATED CORPORATE MEMBER LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

2.

24

2.5,

26.

Significant accounting policies continued

The Company assesses its reinsurance assets on a regular basis and if there is objective evidence, after initial
recognition, of an impairment in value, the Company reduces the carrying amount of the reinsurance asset to
its recoverable amount and recognises the impairment loss in the statement of profit and loss.

Within the financial statements, the reinsurance to close of underwriting years on syndicates has been treated
as the extinguishment of a liability. Whilst IFRS requires assets and liabilities to be presented gross, the
directors have chosen to present reinsurance to close as the extinguishment of the insurance liability in
accordance with market practice.

2.3.7.Receivables and payables related to insurance contracts

Receivables and payables are recognised when due. These include amounts due to and from agents, brokers
and insurance contract holders. If there is objective evidence that the insurance receivable is impaired, the
Company reduces the carrying amount of the insurance receivable accordingly and recognises the impairment
loss in profit and loss.

2.3.8.Salvage and subrogation reimbursements

Some insurance contracts permit the Company to sell property acquired in settling a claim (i.e. salvage). The
Company may also have the right to pursue third parties for payment of some or all costs (i.e. subrogation).
Estimates of salvage recoveries are included as an allowance in the measurement of the insurance liability for
claims and salvage property is recognised in other assets when the liability is settled. The allowance is the
amount that can reasonably be recovered from the disposal of the property. Subrogation reimbursements are
also considered as an allowance in the measurement of the insurance liability for claims and are recognised
in other assets when the liability is settled. The allowance is the assessment of the amount that can be
recovered from the action against the liable third party.

Revenue

Revenue comprises insurance and reinsurance premiums earned on the rendering of insurance protection,
net of outwards reinsurance, together with profit commission, investment returns and other income inclusive
of foreign exchange gains on instruments not formally designated for hedge accounting treatment. The
accounting policies for insurance premiums are outlined above. Profit commission, investment income and
other sources of income are recognised on an accruals basis net of any discounts and amounts such as sales
based taxes collected on behalf of third parties.

Intangible assets - syndicate capacity

The cost of purchasing the Company’s participation in Lloyd’s insurance Syndicate 33 is not amortised but is
tested annually for impairment and is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Having considered
the future prospects of the London insurance market, the Board believes that the Company’s

ownership of syndicate capacity will provide economic benefits over an indefinite number of future periods.
This assumption is reviewed annually to determine whether the asset continues to have an indefinite life.

The Company’s intangible asset relating to syndicate capacity has been allocated, for impairment testing
purposes to one individual cash generating unit. The Company has considered the asset's recoverability on a
value in use basis. This calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial forecasts approved by
management covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated based on
an average level of return and annual growth consistent with the industry long-term average. A pre-tax discount
factor has been applied to projected cash flows as part of the exercise. The results of this exercise indicate
that the recoverable amount exceeds the intangible’s carrying value on the statement of financial position. The
carrying value on a Pence per Pound of capacity basis, on the statement of financial position is also below the
average open market price of Syndicate 33 capacity, witnessed in the recent Lloyd’s of London capacity
auctions in Autumn 2020.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholder is recognised as a liability in the Company’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividend is approved.
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HISCOX DEDICATED CORPORATE MEMBER LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

2.

27.

2.8.

2.9

2.10.

211,

Significant accounting policies continued

Financial assets

The Company has classified financial assets as
a) financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss, and
b) financial assets at amortised cost.

Management determines the classification of its financial investments at initial recognition. The decision by the
Company to designate all financial investments, comprising debt and fixed income securities, equities and
shares in unit trusts, and deposits with credit institutions, at fair value through profit or loss reflects the fact that
the investment portfolios are managed, and their performance evaluated, on a fair value basis. Regular
purchases and sales of investments are accounted for at the date of trade.

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition financial assets are
measured as described below. Financial assets are de-recognised when the right to receive cash flows from
them expires or where they have been transferred and the Company has also transferred substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership.

Fair value for securities quoted in active markets is the bid price exclusive of transaction costs. For the minority
of instruments where no active market exists, fair value is determined by referring to recent transactions and
other valuation factors including the discounted value of expected future cash flows. Fair value changes are
recognised immediately within the investment result line in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset is classified into this category at inception if it is managed and evaluated on a fair value basis
in accordance with documented strategy, if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short-term, or
if it forms part of a portfolio of financial assets in which there is evidence of short-term profit taking.

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets at amortised cost are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted on an active market. Receivables arising from insurance contracts are included in this category
and are reviewed for impairment as part of the impairment review of such assets. Financial assets at amortised
cost are carried at amortised cost less any provision for impairment in value.

Cash and cash equivalents
The Company has classified cash deposits and short-term highly liquid investments as cash and cash
equivalents. These assets are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and are subject to
inconsequential changes in value. Cash equivalents are financial investments with less than three months to
maturity at the date of acquisition.

Impairment of assets
Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually or whenever

there is an indication of impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
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HISCOX DEDICATED CORPORATE MEMBER LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

2. Significant accounting policies continued
2.11.1. Non-financial assets

Obijective factors that are considered when determining whether a non-financial asset such as an intangible
asset may be impaired include, but are not limited to, the following:

e adverse economic, regulatory or environmental conditions that may restrict future cash flows and
asset usage and/or recoverability;

¢ the likelihood of accelerated obsolescence arising from the development of new technologies and
products; and

« the disintegration of the active markets to which the asset is related.

2.11.2. Financial assets

Objective factors that are considered when determining whether a financial asset or group of financial assets
may be impaired include, but are not limited to, the following:

negative rating agency announcements in respect of security issuers, reinsurers and debtors;
significant reported financial difficulties of security issuers, reinsurers and debtors;

actual breaches of credit terms such as persistent late payments or actual default;

the disintegration of the active markets in which a particular asset is traded or deployed;
adverse economic or regulatory conditions that may restrict future cash flows and asset
recoverability; and

e the withdrawal of any guarantee from statutory funds or sovereign agencies implicitly supporting
the asset.

2.11.3. Impairment loss

An impairment loss is recognised in admin expenses for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash generating units).

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior periods. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

2.12. Share Capital

Shares are classified as equity when there is no obligation to transfer cash or assets and results in the equity
holder having a residual interest in the Company's net assets. Dividends are reflected in the financial
statements once the dividend is formally declared.

i

2.13.  Functional currency and presentational currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the syndicates are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the syndicate operates (the ‘functional currency’). The functional
currency of HDCM is USD.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the retranslation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the income statement. Non-monetary items carried at
historical cost are translated in the balance sheet at the exchange rate prevailing on the original transaction
date. Non-monetary items measured at fair value are translated using the exchange rate ruling when the fair
value was determined. ‘
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HISCOX DEDICATED CORPORATE MEMBER LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

2.

Significant accounting policies continued

2.14. Pension recharge

2.15.

2.16.

The Hiscox Group operates a defined benefit pension scheme and a defined contribution pension scheme.
The accrual of benefit for active members of the defined benefit scheme ceased on 31 December 2006.
Syndicate 33 is charged a contribution in the form of a recharge, this amount is not necessarily the whole of
any surplus or deficit on the defined benefit scheme. Subsequently the Company presents this charge within
administrative expenses.

Current and deferred tax

Current tax, including UK corporation tax and foreign tax, is provided at amounts expected to be paid (or
recovered) using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the date of the
statement of financial position.

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. However, if the deferred
income tax arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss, it is not
recognised. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the date of the statement of financial position and are expected to apply when the related deferred
tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that the future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

Use of critical estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of significant estimates, judgements and assumptions.
The Directors consider the accounting policies for determining insurance liabilities, the valuation of
investments, premium recognition, the valuation of current and deferred tax assets and liabilities as being most
critical to an understanding of the Company’s result and position.

The inherent uncertainty of insurance risk requires the Company to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of insurance and reinsurance assets and liabilities at the date of the statement of
financial position. This is the most significant area of potential uncertainty in the Company's financial
statements. There are several sources of uncertainty that need to be considered in the estimation of the
insurance liabilities that the Company will ultimately pay for valid claims. These include but are not restricted
to: inflation; changes in legislation; changes in the Company’s claims handling procedures; and discordant
judicial opinions which extend the Company’s coverage of risk beyond that envisaged at the time of original
policy issuance. The Company seeks to gather corroborative evidence from all relevant sources before making
judgements as to the eventual outcome of claims, particularly those under litigation, which have occurred and
been notified to the Company, but remain unsettled at the date of the statement of financial position.

Estimates are continually evaluated based on entity specific historical experience and contemporaneous
developments observed in the wider industry, and are also updated for expectations of prospective future
developments. Although the possibility exists for material changes in insurance liabilities estimates to have a
critical impact on the Company’s reported performance and financial position, it is anticipated that the scale
and diversity of the Company’s portfolio of insurance business considerably lessens the likelihood of this
occurring. Note 3.1 to financial statements provides a greater analysis of the main methods used by the
Company when formulating estimates of the insurance claims liabilities at the date of the statement of financial
position.
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HISCOX DEDICATED CORPORATE MEMBER LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

2.

217.

Significant accounting policies continued

Premium recognition:

Written gross and outwards reinsurance premiums comprise premiums on contracts incepting during the
financial year. Written premiums are disclosed gross of commission payable to intermediaries and echude
taxes and duties levied on premiums.

Premiums written include an estimate of gross premiums written during the year. For certain contracts,
premium is initially recognised based on estimates of ultimate premium. This occurs where pricing is based on
variables, which are not known with certainty at the point of binding the policy. In determining the estimated
premium, use is made of information provided by brokers and coverholders, past underwriting experience, the
contractual terms of the policy and prevailing market conditions. Subsequently, adjustments to those estimates
arise as updated information relating to those pricing variables becomes available, for example due to
declarations obtained on binding authority contracts, reinstatement premium on reinsurance contracts or other
policy amendments. Such adjustments are recorded in the period in which they are determined and impact
gross written premiums in the income statements and premiums receivable from insureds and cedants
recorded on the balance sheet.

Outwards reinsurance premiums are also disclosed gross of commissions and profit participations recoverable
from reinsurers.

Taxation:

Legislation concerning the determination of taxation assets and liabilities is complex and continually evolving.
In preparing the Company’s financial statements, the Directors estimate current and deferred taxation assets
and liabilities after taking appropriate professional advice.

The determination and finalisation of agreed current and deferred taxation assets and liabilities may not
occur until several years after the date of the statement of financial position and consequently the final
amounts payable or receivable may differ from those presently recorded in these financial statements.

Investments:

The Company carries its financial investments at fair value through profit and loss with fair value determined
with reference to the most active financial markets in which the assets trade. During periods of economic
distress and diminished liquidity, the ability to obtain quoted bid prices may be reduced and as such a greater
degree of judgment is required in obtaining the most reliable source of valuation.

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

IFRS 17 will significantly change the accounting for insurance contracts. It prescribes a general measurement
model based on the discounted current estimates of future cash flows, including an explicit risk adjustment
and a contractual service margin, which represents the unearned profit of the contracts. Application of a
simplified premium allocation approach (PAA), which is similar to the current unearned premium approach, is
permitted if it provides a measurement that is not materially different from the general model or if the coverage
period is one year or less. Any expected losses arising from loss-making contracts are to be accounted for in
the income statement when the entity determines that losses are expected. The presentation of the income
statement will also change, with premium and claims figures being replaced with insurance contract revenue,
insurance service expense and insurance finance income and expense.

The company is evaluating the impact of adopting IFRS 17 on the financial statements which includes:

developing the company'’s accounting policy under IFRS 17,
performing a PAA eligibility assessment;
preparing end-to-end system architecture and configuring an actuarial calculation engine;

outlining an operational readiness framework including stakeholder engagement and an internal
training plan.

IFRS 17 is effective on 1 January 2023 and has not yet been endorsed by the EU.
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HISCOX DEDICATED CORPORATE MEMBER LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

3. Risk review

31

The Hiscox Group's overall appetite for accepting and managing varying classes of risk is defined by the
Group's Board. The Hiscox Group Board has developed a governance framework and has set Group-wide risk
management policies and procedures which include risk identification, risk management and mitigation and
risk reporting. The objective of these policies and procedures is to protect the Group’s shareholders,
policyholders and other stakeholders from negative events that could hinder the Group’s delivery of its
contractual obligations and its achievement of sustainable profitable economic and social performance.

The Company writes a balanced book of insurance and reinsurance business spread by product and
geography. The Directors believe that the Company is well placed to manage its business risk and continue
to trade successfully.

The majority of the risks affecting the Company result from its participation on Hiscox Syndicates 33 and 3624
(the Syndicates). Hiscox Syndicates Limited (HSL) is the managing agent for the Syndicates. Therefore a
number of risks the Company faces are mitigated by governance and controls provided by HSL.

In addition, as a result of the higher volume of loss activity in the year, predominantly due to COVID-19 and
the business interruptions claims, the level of reinsurance credit default and/or dispute risk has significantly
increased. Management monitors the levels of recoverability, including the level of collateral held, the ratings
of reinsurers and the concentration of risk.

HSL has a robust governance framework in place to manage risk. The Board of HSL has delegated more
detailed oversight of risk management to the HSL Risk Committee. The HSL Risk Committee is chaired by an
Independent Non-Executive Director.

The HSL Risk Committee focuses on those areas where there is potential that insufficient action is being taken
to mitigate risks and which may need to be escalated to the HSL Board.

The HSL Board approves the risk appetite with more detailed monitoring of exposures against the risk appetite
being undertaken by the HSL Risk Committee.

In addition, the HSL Board exercises oversight of the development and operational implementation of its risk
management policies and procedures, through the HSL Risk Committee, and ongoing compliance therewith,
through a dedicated internal audit function, which has operational independence, a charter and clear upwards
reporting structure back into the HSL Audit Committee and the HSL Board.

The Company, in common with the non-life insurance industry generally, is fundamentally driven by a desire
to originate, retain and service insurance contracts to maturity. The Company'’s cash flows are funded mainly
through advance premium collections and the timing of such premium inflows is considered to be reasonably
predictable. In addition, the majority of material cash outflows are typically triggered by the occurrence of
insured events non-correlated to financial markets, and not by the inclination or will of policyholders. The
principal sources of risk relevant to the Company’s operations and its financial statements fall into two broad
categories: insurance risk and financial risk, both of which are described below.

Insurance risk

Insurance risk is transferred to the Company by contract holders through the underwriting process. The
Company’s exposure to insurance risk arises from the possibility that an insured event occurs, and claims
subsequently submitted by the insured for payment. In common with other insurers, the Company's earnings
can be affected by unpredictable events and circumstances. These may include, but are not limited to,
conditions such as natural and other catastrophes, legal developments, social change and the emergence of
latent risks. Such events could create significant levels of losses if the Syndicate’s underwriting models,
aggregation tools and policy wordings do not prevent unplanned concentrations of risk, both in

geographical regions and types of policy. Robust risk management and loss mitigation techniques are
employed to minimise this risk, including underwriting models, aggregation tools and policy wordings to
prevent unplanned concentrations of risk.
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3.1.1.  Underwriting risk

Underwriting risk is defined as the risk that insurance premiums will not be sufficient to cover future insurance
losses and associated expenses. Underwriting risk also encompasses people, process and system risks
directly related to underwriting. '

HSL Board sets each Syndicate’s underwriting strategy and risk appetite, seeking to exploit identified
opportunities in the light of other relevant anticipated market conditions.

Specific underwriting objectives such as aggregation limits, reinsurance protection thresholds, geographical
disaster event risk exposures and line of business diversification parameters are prepared and reviewed by
the HSL management team in order to translate the HSL Board’'s summarised underwriting strategy into
specific measurable actions and targets. These actions and targets are reviewed and approved in advance of
each underwriting year. The HSL Board continually reviews its underwriting strategy throughout each
underwriting year in light of evolving market pricing, loss conditions and as opportunities present themselves.

HSL’s underwriters and management consider underwriting risk at an individual contract level and also from a
portfolio perspective where the risks assumed in similar classes of policies are aggregated and the exposure
evaluated in light of historical portfolio experience and prospective factors. To assist with the process of pricing
and managing underwriting risk the Syndicates routinely perform a wide range of activities including the
following:

regularly updating the Syndicate risk models;

documenting, monitoring and reporting on the Syndicates’ strategy to manage risk;

developing systems that facilitate the identification of emerging issues promptly;

utilising sophisticated computer modelling tools to simulate catastrophes and measure the resultant
potential losses before and after reinsurance;

monitoring legal developments and amending the wording of policies when necessary;

regularly aggregating risk exposures across individual underwriting portfolios and known
accumulations of risk;

examining the aggregated exposures in advance of underwriting further large risks; and
developing processes that continually factor market intelligence into the pricing process.

The delegation of underwriting authority to specific individuals, both internally and externally, is subject to
regular reviews. All underwriting staff and binding agencies are set strict parameters in relation to the levels
and types of business they can underwrite, based on individual levels of experience and competence. These
parameters cover areas such as maximum sums insured per insurance contract, maximum gross premiums
written and maximum aggregated exposures per geographical zone and risk

class. All delegations are strictly controlled through these underwriting guidelines and limits and extensive
monitoring, review and auditing of the agencies.

However, as there is no absolute guarantee that an agent will comply with the terms of its authority, the
Syndicates could be exposed to unanticipated losses. Other business areas where the Syndicates are to some
extent reliant on the timely and effective supply of services from third parties include back office policy
processing, data entry and cash collection.

The Syndicates’ insurance contracts include provisions to contain losses such as the ability to impose
deductibles and demand reinstatement premiums in certain cases. In addition, in order to manage the
Syndicates’ exposure to repeated catastrophic events, relevant policies frequently contain payment limits to
cap the maximum amount payable from these insured events over the contract period.

27



- HISCOX DEDICATED CORPORATE MEMBER LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

3.

Risk review continued

HSL compiles estimates of losses arising from realistic disaster events using statistical models alongside input
from its underwriters. These require significant management judgement. Realistic disaster scenarios are
extreme hypothetical events selected to represent major events occurring in areas with large insured values.
They also reflect the areas that represent significant exposure to the Company. The selection of realistic
disaster scenario events is adjusted each year and they are not necessarily directly comparable from one year
to the next. The events are extreme and as yet untested, and as such these estimates may prove inadequate
as a result of incorrect assumptions, model deficiencies, model or losses from unmodelied risks. This means
that should a realistic disaster actually eventuate, the final ultimate losses could materially differ from those
events modelled by management.

The Syndicates also manage underwriting risk by purchasing reinsurance. Reinsurance protection such as
excess of loss and quota share cover is purchased at a Syndicate level to mitigate the effect of catastrophes
and unexpected concentrations of risk. The scope and type of reinsurance protection purchased may change
depending on the extent and competitiveness of cover available in the market. The Company is exposed to
the risk that the reinsurance protection that has been bought is inadequate or inappropriate, but this is
monitored and managed using modelling techniques, supervised by a dedicated reinsurance purchase group.

3.1.2. Reserving risk

Reserving risk is defined as the risk that reserves set in respect of insurance claim losses are ultimately
insufficient to fully settle these claims and associated expenses. This definition also applies to reserves which
have been set previously.

The Syndicates’ procedures for estimating the outstanding costs of settling insured losses at the date of the
statement of financial position, including claims incurred but not yet reported, are detailed in note 2.2.2.

The majority of the Syndicates’ insurance risks are short tail and, based on historical claims experience,
significant claims are normally notified and settled within one to two years of the insured event occurring. Those
claims taking the longest time to develop and settle, typically relate to casualty risks where legal complexities
occasionally develop regarding the insured’s alleged omissions or negligence. The length of time required to
obtain definitive legal judgements and make eventual settlements exposes the Syndicates to a degree of
reserving risk in an inflationary environment.

The majority of the Syndicates’ casualty exposures are written on a claims made basis. However the final
quantum of these claims may not be established for a number of years after the event. Consequently a
significant proportion of the casualty insurance amounts reserved on the statement of financial position may
not be expected to settle within one year of the date of the statement of financial position.

Certain marine and property insurance contracts such as those relating to subsea and other energy assets,
and the related business interruption risks, can also take longer than normal to settle. This is because of the
length of time required for detailed subsea surveys to be carried out and damage assessments agreed together
with difficulties in predicting when the assets can be brought back into full production.

The provisions are set above the actuarial mid-point to reduce the risk that actual claims exceed the amount
that has been set aside.

For the inwards reinsurance lines, there is often a time lag between the establishment and re-estimation of
case reserves and reporting to the Syndicates. The Syndicates work closely with the reinsured to ensure timely
reporting and also centrally analyse industry loss data to verify the reported reserves. The Company purchases
additional reinsurance to mitigate underwriting and reserving risk incurred in its participation on the Syndicates.

Booked reserves include a net margin of $92.9million (2019: $75.1 million), representing 9.4% (2019: 9.0%) of
net booked reserves. This is the margin above the best estimate to help mitigate the uncertainty within the
reserve estimates. As the best estimate matures and becomes more certain, the management margin is
gradually released in line with the reserving policy.
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Risk review continued
Financial risk

The Company is exposed to financial risk through its ownership of financial instruments including financial
liabilities. The Company and Syndicates invest in financial assets in order to fund obligations arising from its
insurance contracts and other liabilities. The key financial risk for the Syndicates is that the proceeds from its
financial assets and investment resuit generated thereon are not sufficient to fund the obligations. The most
important entity and economic variables that could influence in such an outcome are the reliability of fair values,
interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and currency risk. The Company’s and Syndicates’ policies and
procedures for managing exposure to these specific categories of risk are detailed below.

3.2.1  Reliability of fair values

The Company and Syndicates have elected to carry all financial investments at fair value through profit or loss
as they are managed and evaluated on a fair value basis in accordance with a documented strategy. All of the
financial investments held by the Company and Syndicates are available to trade in markets and the Company
and Syndicates therefore seek to determine fair value by reference to published prices or as derived by pricing
vendors using observable quotations in the most active financial markets in which the assets trade. The fair
value of financial assets is measured primarily with reference to their closing bid market prices at the date of
the statement of financial position.

The ability to obtain quoted bid market prices may be reduced in periods of diminished liquidity. In addition,
those quoted prices that may be available may represent an unrealistic proportion of market holdings or
individual trade sizes that could not be readily available to the Company and Syndicates. In such instances fair
values may be determined or partially supplemented using other observable market inputs such as prices
provided by market makers such as dealers and brokers, and prices achieved in the most recent regular
transaction of identical or closely related instruments occurring before the date of the statement of financial
position, but updated for relevant perceived changes in market conditions.

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Syndicates held asset-backed and mortgage-backed fixed income
instruments in their investment portfolios. Together with the Syndicates’ investment managers, Management
continues to monitor the potential for any adverse development associated with this investment exposure
through the analysis of relevant factors such as credit ratings, collateral, subordination levels and default rates
in relation to the securities held. The Company and Syndicates did not experience any material defaults on
debt securities during the current or prior year.

Valuation of these securities will continue to be impacted by external market factors including defauit rates,
rating agency actions, and liquidity. The Company and Syndicates will make adjustments to their investment
portfolios as appropriate as part of their overall portfolio strategy, but their ability to mitigate risk by selling or
hedging its exposures may be limited by the market environment. The Syndicates’ future results may be
impacted, both positively and negatively, by the valuation adjustments applied to these securities.

3.2.2 Interest rate risk

Fixed income investments represent a significant proportion of the Company and Syndicates’ assets and the
Directors continually monitor investment strategy to minimise the risk of a fall in the portfolio’s market value
which could affect the amount of business that the Syndicates are able to underwrite or its ability to settle
claims as they fall due. The fair value of the Companies and Syndicates’ investment portfolio of debt and fixed
income securities is inversely correlated to movements in market interest rates. If market interest rates fall, the
fair value of the Company’s and Syndicates’ debt and fixed income investments would tend to rise and vice
versa. Debt and fixed income assets are predominantly invested in high quality corporate, government and
asset backed bonds. The investments typically have relatively short durations and terms to maturity. The
Syndicate portfolio is managed to minimise the impact of interest rate risk on anticipated Syndicates cash flows.
The Company portfolio is managed to maximise investment result and maintain capacity to ensure the
Syndicates can continue to write business.
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The Company, including through the Syndicates, hold significant portfolios of investments to support their
obligations, including their insurance liabilities, and their profits depend in part upon the returns that these
achieve. Changes in interest rates, equity returns and other economic variables can therefore affect financial
performance. To mitigate this risk the Syndicates have detailed investment strategies that seek to minimise
the concentration of investment risk in a particular issuer or sector. The majority of investment assets held are
low risk, high quality, short duration debt securities and fixed term deposits.

Table a)

Nature of debt and fixed income holdings 31 December 2020 31 December 2019
% weighting % weighting

Government issued bonds and instruments 15 33

Government supported* 15 5

Asset backed securities 0 0

Mortgage backed instruments — Agency 5

Mortgage backed securities — Non Agency 1 1

Corporate bonds 64 54

* Includes supranational debt, agency debt and federal debt deposit insurance corporation bank bonds.

Duration is the weighted average length of time required for an instrument's cash flow stream to be recovered,
where the weightings involved are based on the discounted present values of each cash flow. A closely related
concept, modified duration, measures the sensitivity of the instrument’s price to a change in its yield to maturity.
Convexity measures the sensitivity of modified duration to changes in the yield to maturity.

One method of assessing interest rate sensitivity is through the examination of duration-convexity factors in
the underlying portfolio. Using a duration-convexity based sensitivity analysis, if market interest rates had
increased/decreased by 50 basis points at the date of the statement of financial position, the fair value might
have been expected to decrease/(increase) by $12.0 million (2019: $6.8 million) assuming the only statement
of financial position area impacted was debt and fixed income financial assets.

Insurance contract liabilities are not directly sensitive to the level of market interest rates, as they are
undiscounted and contractually non-interest-bearing. The Syndicates’ debt and fixed income assets are further
detailed in note 11. The Syndicates have no significant borrowings carrying interest rate risk.

The market value of the Syndicates’ and the Company’s holdings of deposits with credit institutions are less
exposed to movements in interest rates due to the very short time frame to their maturity.

323 Credit risk

The Company and Syndicates have exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will suffer a
deterioration in solvency or be unable to pay amounts in full when due.

The concentrations of credit risk exposures held by insurers may be expected to be greater than those
associated with other industries, due to the specific nature of insurance and reinsurance markets and the extent
of investments held in financial markets. In both markets, the syndicates interact with a number of
counterparties who are engaged in similar activities with similar customer profiles, and often in the same
geographical areas and industry sectors. Consequently, as many of these counterparties are themselves
exposed to similar economic characteristics, one single localised or macroeconomic change could severely
disrupt the ability of a significant number of counterparties to meet the syndicates’ agreed contractual terms
and conditions. '
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Key areas of exposure to credit risk include:

reinsurers’ share of insurance liabilities;

amounts due from reinsurers in respect of claims already paid;

amounts due from insurance contract holders;

amounts due from insurance intermediaries; and

counterparty risk with respect to cash and cash equivalents, and investments and other deposits
including deposits and derivative transactions.

The Company’s and Syndicates’ maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying values of
monetary assets and reinsurance assets included in the statement of financial position. The Syndicates
structure the levels of credit risk accepted by placing limits on their exposure to a single counterparty, or groups
of counterparties. Such risks are subject to an annual or more frequent review. There is no significant
concentration of credit risk with respect to financial assets at amortised cost, as the Syndicates have a large
number of internationally dispersed debtors with unrelated operations.

The Syndicates purchase reinsurance protection to contain exposure from single claims and the aggregation
of claims from catastrophic events and to share the exposure with our reinsurance partners. if a reinsurer fails
to pay a claim for any reason, the Syndicates remain liable for the payment to the policyholder. The
creditworthiness of reinsurers is therefore continually reviewed throughout the year. The Syndicates’
experience of bad debt losses arising from its reinsurance arrangements compares favourably with industry
averages. HSL has established a reinsurance security committee which assesses and is required to approve
all new reinsurers before business is placed with them.

The Syndicates also mitigate credit counterparty risk by concentrating debt and fixed income investments in
high quality instruments, including a particular emphasis on government bonds and municipal agency
instruments issued mainly by European Union and North American countries.

The carrying amount of financial assets and reinsurance assets represents the maximum credit risk exposed.
An analysis of the Company’s and Syndicates’ major exposures to counterparty credit risk excluding financial
assets at amortised cost, based on Standard & Poor’s or equivalent rating at 31 December:

Table b)
As at 31 December 2020 AAA AA A BBB and Total
below

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Financial assets carried at fair value
(excluding equities and shares in unit
trusts) 192,236 573,441 834,225 436,125 2,036,027
Reinsurers share of technical
provisions: claims outstanding 199,216 343,402 2,288,993 102,530 2,934,141
Debtors: reinsurance recoverable 367 32,381 105,908 33,265 171,921
Cash and cash equivalents - 15,802 165,178 - 180,980
Total 391,819 965,026 3,394,304 571,920 5,323,069
As at 31 December 2019 AAA AA A BBB and Total

below

$000 “$000 $000 $000 $000
Financial assets carried at fair value
(excluding equities and shares in unit
trusts) _ 181,269 807,740 581,010 418,039 1,988,058
Reinsurers share of technical provisions:
claims outstanding : 221,778 233,613 2,199,065 25,012 2,679,468
Debtors: reinsurance recoverable 1,759 30,614 105,210 6,264 143,847
Cash and cash equivalents - 14,357 193,907 6 208,270
Total 404,806 1,086,324 3,079,192 449,321 5,019,643
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The Syndicates have no material debtors arising from direct insurance and reinsurance operations that are
past due and impaired at the reporting date. The Syndicates believe that impairment of these debtors is not
appropriate on the basis of the stage of collection of amounts owed to the Syndicates.

The Syndicates have no financial assets that would be past due or impaired whose terms have been
renegotiated.

At 31 December 2020 the Syndicates held no material debt and fixed income assets that were past due or
impaired beyond their reported fair values, either for the current period under review or on a cumulative basis
(2019: $nil). For the current and prior period, the Syndicates did not experience any material defaults on debt
securities. ‘

324 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk arises where cash may not be available to pay obligations when due at a reasonable cost. The
Syndicates are exposed to daily cash calls on their available cash resources, mostly for the settlement of
claims. The Syndicates’ approach is to maintain liquid assets that can be translated to cash at short notice
without any significant capital loss. These funds are monitored by management on a regular basis. We have
determined that the Syndicate has sufficient levels of liquidity to meet its funding requirements in all likely
scenarios.

A significant proportion of investment assets held are low risk, high quality, short duration debt securities and
fixed term deposits. The contractual maturity profile of investment assets at 31 December was as follows:

Table ¢)
As at 31 December 2020 Between Between
Within one one and three and Over five

year threeyears five years years Total

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Financial assets carried at fair
value (excluding equities and .
shares in unit trusts) 658,058 1,194,536 172,243 11,190 2,036,027
Cash at bank and in hand 180,980 - - - 180,980
Total 839,038 1,194,536 172,243 11,190 2,217,007
As at 31 December 2019 Between Between
: Within one one and three and Over five

year three years five years years Total

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Financial assets carried at fair
value (excluding equities and 560,415 1,162,080 131,881 143,682 1,988,058
shares in unit trusts)
Cash at bank and in hand 208,270 - - - 208,270
Total 768,685 1,152,080 131,881 143682 2,196,328

Average contractual maturity analysed by currency of investments:
Table d) 2020 2019
Years Years

Pound Sterling 1.6 2.1
US Dollar 2.8 29
Euro 2.3 2.1
Canadian Dollar 1.9 19
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324 Liquidity risk continued

The following is an analysis by business segment of the estimated timing of net cash flows based on the claims
liabilities balance held at 31 December 2020 and 2019. The Syndicates do not discount claims liabilities. The
estimated phasing of settlement is based on current estimates and historical trends and the actual timing of
future settlement cash flows may differ materially from the disclosure below.

Table e)
As at 31 December 2020 Between Between
Within one one and three and Over five
year threeyears five years years Total
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Insurance Liabilities (1,625,037) (896,690) (945,283) (309,161) (3,776,171)
Reinsurance Assets 1,229,696 720,672 747,366 236,407 2,934,141
Net Liabilities (395,341) (176,018) (197,917) (72,754) (842,030)
As at 31 December 2019 Between Between
Within one one and three and Over five
year three years five years years Total
$000 $000 $000 " $000 $000
Insurance Liabilities (1,414,124) (823,420) (874,044) (263,616) (3,375,204)
Reinsurance Assets 1,091,884 680,789 704,223 202,571 2,679,467
Net Liabilities (322,240) (142,631) (169,821) (61,045) - (695,737)

3.2.5 Currency risk

The Company has no gross written premium, the majority of the Syndicates’ gross written premium is in US
Dollars, consequently movements in the Sterling against US Dollar exchange rate may have a material effect
on its financial performance and position. The Syndicates’ financial assets are denominated in the same
currencies as its insurance liabilities, leaving the profit or loss as the main currency exposure. This profit and
loss is distributed in accordance with Lloyd's rules using a combination of Sterling and US Dollars. The
Company's financial assets are denominated in US Dollar and Pound Sterling which can result in exposure to
foreign exchange fluctuations.
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3.2.5 Currency risk continued

The profile of the Syndicates’ assets and liabilities, categorised by currency at their translated carrying amount
was as follows:

Table f)
Canadian

As at 31 December 2020 Sterling US Dollar Euro Dollar Total

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Intangible assets 33,082 - - - 33,082
Deferred Tax 26,294 - - - 26,294
Current Tax - - - - -
Deferred Acquisition Costs 32,655 159,685 3,391 10,192 205,923
Financial assets carried at fair
value , 317,360 1,699,590 50,613 128,288 2,195,851
Reinsurance assets ' 210,966 3,135,553 48,589 43,411 3,438,519
Financial assets at amortised cost
including insurance receivables (194,582) 958,651 51,098 (37,367) 777,800
Cash and cash equivalents 31,369 112,695 25,461 11,455 180,980
Total assets 457,144 6,066,174 179,152 155,979 6,858,449
Deferred tax - - - - -
Insurance liabilities 350,962 3,972,833 149,618 109,344 4,582,757
Financial liabilities at amortised
cost 292,028 1,839,277 33,811 38,734 2,203,850
Current Tax 18,132 - - - 18,132
Total liabilities : 661,122 5,812,110 183,429 148,078 6,804,739
Net assets (203,978) 254,064 (4,277) 7,901 53,710

Canadian

As at 31 December 2019 Restated* Sterling US Dollar Euro Dollar Total

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Intangible assets - 33,082 - - 33,082
Deferred Tax 8,464 - - - 8,464
Current Tax 17 17
Deferred acquisition costs 8,112 222,433 10,332 5,667 246,544
Financial assets carried at fair value 332,187 1,643,050 18,872 108,644 2,102,753
Reinsurance assets 162,563 2,970,794 54,990 41,001 3,229,348
Financial assets at amortised cost
including insurance receivables 170,088 493,079 (17,826) 23,599 668,940
Cash and cash equivalents 65,860 118,843 16,324 7,243 208,270
Total assets 747,291 5,481,281 82,692 186,154 6,497,418
Deferred tax - - - - -
Insurance liabilities 321,554 3,671,376 159,044 102,103 4,254 077
Financial liabilities at amortised cost 311,769 1,623,683 29,689 26,653 1,991,794
Current Tax 32,875 32,875
Total liabilities 666,198 5,295,059 . 188,733 128,756 6,278,746
Net assets 81,093 186,222 (106,041) 57,398 218,672

*See note 2.2
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3.3 Sensitivity analysis

34

35

A 10% strengthening of the US Dollar against the following currencies at 31 December would have
increased/(decreased) members balances and profit/(loss) for the financial year by the amounts shown below.
This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant.

Table g)
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
$000 $000
Sterling (20,938) . (38,356)
Euro (428) 210
Canadian Dollar 790 295

A 10% weékening of the US Dollar against the following currencies at 31 December would have
increased/(decreased) members balances and profit/(loss) for the financial year by the amounts shown below.
This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant.

Table h)
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
$000 $000

Sterling 20,938 38,356
Euro : 428 (210)
Canadian Dollar ' (790) (295)

Limitations of sensitivity analysis

The above tables demonstrate the impact of a change in a major input assumption while other assumptions
remain unchanged. It should be noted that these sensitivities are non-linear, and larger or smaller impacts
should not be interpolated or extrapolated from these results.

The sensitivity analyses do not take into consideration that the company’s assets and liabilities are actively
managed. Additionally, the financial position of the company may vary at the time that any actual market
movement occurs. For example, the company’s financial risk management strategies aim to manage the
exposure to market fluctuations. As investment markets move past various trigger levels, management actions
could include selling investments, changing investment portfolio allocation and taking other protective action.
Other limitations in the above sensitivity analyses include the use of hypothetical market movements to
demonstrate potential risk. These represent the company’s views of possible near-term market changes that
cannot be predicted with any certainty, and the assumption that all interest rates move in an identical fashion.

Regulatory issues

Both Syndicates are required to comply with the requirements of the Prudential Regulation Authority, Financial
Conduct Authority and Lloyd'’s. Lloyd’s requirements include those imposed on the Lloyd’s market by overseas
regulators, particularly in respect of US Situs business. Regulatory risk is the risk of loss owing to a breach of
regulatory requirements or failure to respond to regulatory change. The Syndicate’s managing agent devotes
considerable resources to meet its regulatory obligations, including compliance and internal audit functions.
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3.6 Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss from people, processes or systems or external events with origins outside
the scope of other risk categories. HSL actively monitors and controls its operational risks through the
Operational Risk Committee and Operational Leadership team. Examples of key operational risks for the
syndicate include IT performance and stability, voluntary staff exit rate and the delivery of major projects.

HSL recognise that the ability to continue operations in the event of a business interruption, whether from a
maijor disaster or minor incident, is a fundamental factor in meeting the expectations of our customers and
internal and external stakeholders. Both Syndicates and Lloyd's have a formal disaster recovery plan which,
in the event of an incident, will support alternative accommodation strategies. All IT systems are assessed for
recovery time objectives and investment has been made into remote working technology providing access to
corporate systems away from the office and ensuring that this technology is well used and familiar to staff.

3.7 Equity price risk

The company is exposed to equity price risk through its holding of equity and unit trust investments. This is
limited to a relatively small and controlled proportion of the overall investment portfolio and the equity and unit
trust holdings involved are diversified over a number of companies and industries. An allocation is made to
less volatile, absolute return strategies within the risk assets, so as to balance the maximising of returns with
the need to ensure capital is available throughout any downturn in financial markets.

4. Capital

The capital structure of the Company consists of equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued capital, reserves and retained earnings as disclosed in the statement of changes in equity.

Hiscox's approach to capital management is to ensure our balance sheet is sufficiently robust to absorb large
shocks, whether due to insurance losses or economic stress, while maintaining the financial flexibility to seize
opportunities as they arise.

During the current and prior financial periods, the Company complied with all external capital requirements to
which it is subject.

The Company is required to hold regulatory capital in compliance with the prudential rules issued by the UK’s
Prudential Regulation Authority (PRA) and is also subject to Lloyd's capital requirements.

Under PRA rules, the corporate member must hold capital in excess of the higher of two amounts. The first is
the Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR), as prescribed by EU directives, calculated by applying fixed
percentages to premium and claims and allowing for historic reinsurance recoveries. The second is the
calculation of an ultimate Solvency Capital Requirement (USCR).

Lloyd's require the preparation of a Lloyd's Capital Return (LCRY), including a statement of financial position
prepared under Solvency |l principles and the calculation of a USCR. The uSCR takes account of one year of
new business in full attaching to the next underwriting year and the risks over the lifetime of the liabilities (‘to
ultimate’). The requirements include risks for all business attaching to the next underwriting year. This is an
equivalent recognition of risks and exposures at a 1:200 confidence level as required under ICAS at Lloyd's.

For the final capital requirement, the Economic Capital Assessment (ECA), Lloyd's take the uSCR and apply
an uplift currently at 35%. This is then subject to a minimum of 40% (2019:40%) of the Syndicate’s agreed
premium capacity limit.

The PRA expects management to apply their rules continuously. If a firm’s capital falls below its ECA, steps
must be taken to restore capital adequacy.

At 31 December 2020, the Company provided sufficient Funds at Lloyd's (FAL) to meet its solvency
requirement.
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5. Expenses

5.1

Restated*

2020 2019

$000 $000

Brokerage and commissions 443,804 476,031
Other acquisition costs 14,877 14,259
Reinsurers’ commissions and profit participations (156,503) (163,001)
Change in deferred acquisition costs 40,622 11,952
Expenses for the acquisition of insurance contracts 342,800 339,241
Administrative expenses 52,277 34,074
Investment management fees 525 941
Net foreign exchange loss/ (gain) (3,970) (603)
Finance costs 88 495
Total expenses (excluding net claims and claims adjustment expenses) 391,720 374,148

*See note 2.2

Also included in Administrative expenses is a pension recharge as detailed in note 2.13. In calendar year 2020

this amounted to a charge of $17.8m (2019: charge of $4.6m).

Brokerage and commissions on direct business written was $405.2m (2019: $434.2m).

Finance costs are primarily in relation to the provision of Funds At Lloyd's that the Company is required to
hold, primarily to cover circumstances where syndicate assets prove insufficient to meet the company’s

underwriting liabilities on the syndicates it participates on.

The Company has not employed any staff during the current or preceding financial period.

Directors' remuneration

All the executive directors of the Company are employed by Hiscox Underwriting Groijp Services Ltd. The

Company was not recharged for any of their services during the year (2019: $nil).

The Directors may be members of a defined contribution scheme. Certain Directors are members of a
defined benefit scheme that closed to future accrual with effect from 31 December 2006. These details are
shown in the table below, along with aggregate gains made on share options and performance share plan

awards during the current and prior year. :

2020 2019
Deferred members of the defined benefit scheme - 1
Pensioner members of the defined benefit scheme 1 1
Deferred members of the defined contribution scheme 1 1
Pensioner member of the defined contribution scheme - 1
Aggregate gains made on share options and performance share plan awards ($000) - 592
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5. Expenses continued

5.2 Staff numbers and costs

All the executive Directors of the Company are employed by Hiscox Underwriting Group Services Ltd. The
Company was not recharged for any of their services during the year (2019: $nil). Recharges of expenses to
Syndicates the Company participates on are disclosed in the accounts of those Syndicates.

5.3 Auditor’'s remuneration

The fees payable to the Company’'s external auditor PricewaterhouseCoopers, its member firms and its
associates (exclusive of VAT) include the following amounts recorded as administrative expenses the income

statement:
2020 2019
$000 $000
Fees payable to the Company’s auditors for the audit of the financial statements:
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for the audit of the Company 33 33
Fees payable to the Syndicate’s auditor for the audit of the Syndicate 33 accounts 255 333
Fees payable to the Syndicate’s auditor for the audit of the Syndicate 3624
accounts 154 140
Fees payable to the Syndicate’s auditor for the audit related assurance services to 75 100
Syndicate 33
Fees payable to the Syndicate’s auditor for the audit related assurance services to 51 50
Syndicate 3624
Total auditors’ remuneration expense 568 656

The fees disclosed includes a share of fees for the audit of and other services provided to Syndicate 33
equal to the Company’s participation on the Syndicate. Other services relate to the audit of the regulatory

returns.
5.4 Net foreign exchange gains

The net foreign exchange gains for the year include the following amounts:

Restated*
2020 2019
$000 $000
Net foreign exchange gains recognised in the income statement 3,970 603
Overall impact of foreign exchange related items on net assets 3,970 603
*See note 2.2
6 Investment result
The total result before taxation comprises:
2020 2019
$000 $000
Investment income including interest receivable 23,011 24,100
Net realised gains/(losses) on financial investments at fair value through profit
or loss 6,516 1,735
Net unrealised gains/(losses) on financial investments at fair value through
profit or loss 25,673 23,941
Total resuit 55,200 49,776

Investment expenses are disclosed in note 5.
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7 Segmental analysis

An anélysis of the underwriting result before investment return is set out below:

Gross Gross Gross Net
premiums premiums claims operating  Reinsurance
written earned incurred expenses Balance Total
2020 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Direct insurance
Accident and health 26,258 28,897 (11,070) (10,645) (3,470) 3,712
Motor - Third Party liability 48 44 1,756 (401) (1,798) (399)
Motor - Other classes (960) 26,162 (13,446) (5,322) (4,738) 2,656
Marine aviation and transport 153,975 135,944 (122,592) (30,362) 19,520 2,510
Fire and other damage to
property 582,138 594,074 (269,100) (113,666) (89,546) 121,762
Third party liability 617,012 616,072 (547,839) (165,831) (11,126) (108,724)
Miscellaneous 129,433 136,063 (354,557) (38,217) 75,686 (181,025)
1,507,904 1,537,256 (1,316,848) (364,444) (15,472) (159,508)
Reinsurance 313,677 356,609 (186,530) (31,157) (105,945) 32,977
Total 1,821,581 1,893,865 (1,503,378) (395,601) (121,417) (126,531)
Gross Gross Gross Net
premiums premiums claims operating  Reinsurance
written earned incurred expenses Balance Total
2019 Restated* $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Direct insurance
Accident and health 33,087 40,224 (24,107) (14,671) (2,210) (764)
Motor - Third Party liability 2,356 2,903 (2,535) (686) (45) (363)
Motor - Other classes 10,088 14,517 (12,179) (3,202) (346) (1,210)
Marine aviation and transport 154,530 158,524 (94,687) (42,826) (6,729) 14,282
Fire and other damage to
property 603,392 595,643 (391,959) (117,367) (57,652) 28,665
Third party liability 623,411 581,620 (455,222) (137,877) 13,908 2,429
Miscellaneous 95,493 117,400 (79,158) (30,963) (950) 6,329
1,522,357 1,510,831 (1,059,847) (347,592) (54,024) 49,368
Reinsurance 369,458 378,918 (578,913) (26,665) 143,838 (82,822)
Total 1,891,815 1,889,749 (1,638,760) (374,257) 89,814 (33,454)

*See note 2.2
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8 Tax expense Restated*
The amounts charged in the income statement comprise the following: 2020 2019
$000 $000

Current tax expense 7,564 10,808
Deferred tax credit (18,523) (8,539)
(10,959) 2,269

Current tax expense 2020 2019
$000 $000

Current tax expense 7,631 11,661
Adjustments to UK corporation tax in respect of previous periods (67) (853)
7,564 10,808

Deferred tax credit 2020 2019
$000 $000

Origination and reversal of timing differences (20,699) (8,229)
Adjustments in respect of previous periods 3,184 (645)
Effect of rate change (1,008) 335
(18,523) (8,539)

The tax expense on the Company'’s profit before tax differs (2019: differs) from the theoretical amount that

would arise using the average tax rate applicable to profits of the Company as follows:

Restated*
2020 2019
$000 $000
Profit/(Loss) before tax (67,449) 16,430
Tax calculated at the standard corporation tax rate applicable in the UK of 19%
(2019: 19%) ‘ (12,815) 3,122
Effects of:
Change in deferred tax rate ' (1,008) 335
ltems not (taxable) / deductible (253) 310
Prior year tax adjustment to current tax (67) (853)
Prior year tax adjustment to deferred tax 3,184 (645)
Tax charge for the period (10,959) 2,269

*See note 2.2

Factors affecting tax charges in future years

Budgets in previous years announced changes to the main rate of UK corporation tax. The current rate of
19% was enacted on 26™ October 2015 and applied from 1%t April 2017.

A reduction in the UK corporation tax rate from 19% to 17% (effective from 1 April 2020) was substantively
enacted on 6 September 2016, however, the 11 March 2020 Budget announced that the UK tax rate would
remain at a rate 19% and the deferred tax balance has been calculated at this rate.

It was further announced in the Budget held on 3 March 2021 that the corporate tax rate would rise to 25%

from 1 April 2023. The impact of this rate change would be to increase the deferred tax asset by $8.3m. As
the rate has not been substantively enacted this has not been reflected in the balance sheet position.
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9 Intangible assets

2020 2019
$000 $000
Net book amount at 1 January '
Cost 33,082 33,082
Accumulated impairment - -
Net book amount 33,082 33,082
Year ended 31 December
Opening net book amount . 33,082 33,082
Impairment charges - -
Closing net book amount 33,082 33,082
Net book amount at 31 December
Cost 33,082 33,082
Accumulated impairment charges - -
Net book amount 33,082 33,082

Intangible assets represent the cost of acquiring capacity in Syndicate 33 at the Lloyd's auctions less any
impairment in this value. The Syndicate's weighted average cost recognised on the statement of financial
position is approximately ten pence per pound of capacity, which is significantly below the average open market
price of capacity witnessed in the recent Lloyd’s of London capacity auctions in Autumn 2020.

The Company also holds capacity on Syndicate 3624 however this was created at zero cost.

10 Deferred acquisition costs

2020 2019
$000 $000
Balance deferred at 1 January 246,544 258,496
Acquisition costs incurred in relation to insurance contracts written 458,681 494,930
Acquisition costs expensed to the income statement (499,302) (506,882)
Balance deferred at 31 December ) 205,923 246,544
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11 Financial assets carried at fair value

Financial investments are measured at their bid price values, with all changes from one accounting period to
the next being recorded through the income statement.

Fair value hierarchy

As at 31 December 2020 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

$000 $000 $000 $000
Equities and shares in unit trusts - 159,688 29,305 188,993
Debt and fixed income securities 489,931 1,516,778 - 2,006,709
Derivative financial assets - 149 - 149
Derivative financial liabilities : - (557) (1) (558)
As at 31 December 2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

$000 $000 $000 $000
Equities and shares in unit trusts . - 114,696 - 114,696
Debt and fixed income securities 658,609 1,329,445 - 1,988,054
Derivative financial assets - 3 - 3
Derivative financial liabilities - (263) - (263)

All financial investments in the current and prior financial year were classified as held for trading and carried

at fair value through profit or loss. Other financial assets are cash at bank and in hand, direct insurance and
reinsurance debtors, other debtors and accrued income, which are classified as financial assets at amortised
cost.

The fair value hierarchy classifies financial instruments into Level 1 to Level 3 based on the significance of
the inputs used in measuring their fair value with Level 1 being the most reliable. The levels within the fair
value hierarchy are defined as follows:

Level 1 — fair values measured using unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical instruments;

Level 2 — fair values measured using directly or indirectly observable inputs or other similar valuation
techniques for which all significant inputs are based on observable market data;

Level 3 —fair values measured using valuation techniques for which significant inputs are not based on market
observable data.

The Company measures the fair value of its financial investments based on prices provided by investment
managers who obtain market data from numerous independent pricing services. The pricing services used by
the investment manager obtain actual transaction prices for securities that have quoted prices in active
markets. For those securities which are not actively traded, the pricing service uses common market valuation
pricing models. Observable inputs used in common market valuation pricing models include, but are not limited
to, broker quotes, credit ratings, interest rates and yield curves, prepayment speeds, default rates and other
such inputs which are available from market sources.

Included within Level 1 of the hierarchy are Government bonds and treasury bills which are assessed by the
Syndicate as being traded in an active market where fair value is based on unadjusted quoted market prices.

Level 2 of the hierarchy contains US Government agencies, corporate securities, asset backed securities,
mortgage backed securities and certain other Government securities. The fair value of these assets are based
on, where obtainable, guided prices and prices derived from models with observable market inputs as
discussed above. Quoted prices for US Government agencies, certain other Government securities and

. corporate securities are based on a limited number of transactions for those securities and as such the
Company considers these instruments to have similar characteristics of those instruments classified as Level
2. Also included within Level 2 are units held in traditional long funds and long and short special funds and
financial derivatives. :
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" 11. Financial assets carried at fair value continued

Where a valuation technique is used, the Company selects inputs using the most reliable source of data and
where possible observable market data.

12 Financial assets at amortised cost

Restated*
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
$000 $000
Gross receivable arising from insurance and reinsurance contracts 720,058 639,622
- Less provision for impairment (184) (246)
Net receivable arising from insurance and reinsurance contracts 719,874 639,376
Due from contract holders, brokers, agents and intermediaries ’ 317,314 299,958
Due from reinsurance operations 402,560 339,418
719,874 639,376

Other financial assets
- Prepayments and accrued income 708 662
- Other 57,218 28,902
Total financial assets at amortised cost 777,800 668,940

Note 20 sets out the amounts to be settled after one year.

There is no significant concentration of credit risk with respect to financial assets at amortised cost, as the
Company has a large number of internationally dispersed debtors.

13 Cash and cash equivalents

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

$000 $000

Cash } : 177,508 180,328
Cash equivalents 3,472 27,942
180,980 208,270

Cash and cash equivalents includes funds held by Syndicates on which the Company participates. These cash
deposits are held in a well diversified range of banks and financial institutions. Cash includes overnight
deposits. Cash equivalents include debt securities with an original maturity date of less than three months and
money market funds.

14 Share capital

2020 2019
Number of Number of
shares $000 shares $000
Called up, allotted and fully paid shares of $1 each
Ordinary shares of $1.35 each 1,500,000 2,025 1,500,000 2,025
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15 Foreign currency reserve

31 December

31 December

2020 2019

$000 $000

At 1 January 22,049 22,049
Movement in foreign currency reserve - -
At 31 December 22,049 22,049

16 Deferred tax
Restated

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

$000 $000

Deferred tax assets 79,806 39,710
Deferred tax liabilities (53,512) (33,400)
Total net deferred tax liability 26,294 6,310

Deferred tax assets predominantly relate to losses recognised on syndicate years of account that have yet to
be distributed to the company and are therefore not yet deductible.

Deferred tax liabilities predominantly relate to historic tax deductions for the movement in the claims
equalisation reserve which are being unwound over 6 years, as well as reinsurance recoveries which are not

yet taxable.

16.1 Movement in total deferred tax statement of financial position headings

Restated
31 December 31 December

2020 2019

$000 $000

At 1 January 6,310 (2,534)
Income statement credit 18,523 8,539
Foreign exchange impact 1,461 305
At 31 December 26,294 6,310

16.2 Deferred assets and liabilities analysis

1 January Income Foreign 31 December

2020 statement exchange 2020

$000 (charge)/credit (charge)/ credit $000
Intangible assets 1,451 3) 1,448
Undeclared results 38,260 37,164 78,357
Reinsurance recoveries (24,247) (22,299) (1,760) (48,3086)
Claims equalisation reserves (9,154) 3,660 (5,205)
6,310 18,522 26,294
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17 Insurance liabilities and reinsurance assets

2020 2019

$000 $000
Gross
Claims reported 1,327,620 1,130,919
Claims incurred but not reported 2,351,057 2,213,010
Unexpired Risk Reserve : 31,490 -
Loss adjustment expenses 66,004 31,275
Unearned premium 806,586 878,873
Total insurance liabilities, gross 4,582,757 4,254,077
Recoverable from reinsurers
Claims reported 1,011,623 A 858,319
Claims incurred but not reported 1,900,193 1,821,148
Unexpired Risk Reserve 22,324 -
Unearned premium 504,379 549,881
Total reinsurers’ share of insurance liabilities 3,438,519 3,229,348
Net
Claims reported 315,997 272,600
Claims incurred but not reported 450,864 391,862

~ Unexpired Risk Reserve 9,166 -

Loss adjustment expenses 66,004 31,275
Unearned premium 302,207 328,992
Total insurance liabilities, net 1,144,238 1,024,729

18 Current tax

The Company is part of a group payment arrangement for corporation tax purposes and accordingly tax
balances are settled by Hiscox plc. The current tax liabilities which are covered by the arrangement but remain
unsettled by Hiscox plc as at December 2020 are $18.1m and $30.7m for the year ended 2020 and 2019
respectively.

19 Financial liabilities at amortised cost

2020 2019

$000 $000

Creditors arising out of direct insurance operations 71,751 3,413
Creditors arising out of reinsurance operations 1,827,983 1,755,682
Reinsurance commission deferred 343,122 76,137
Other creditors 57,512 ‘ 26,600
Accruals and deferred income 321 315
Due to parent company 98,443 129,185
Due to other subsidiaries (195,841) 199
Derivative financial liabilities 559 263
Total financial liabilities at amortised cost 2,203,850 1,991,794

20 Non-current assets and liabilities

The amounts expected to be settled after one year of the date of the statement of financial position, relate to
the following items:

2020 2019
Notes $000 $000

Financial assets at amortised cost including insurance
receivables ) 12 53,050 45778
Deferred tax 16 26,294 6,310
Financial liabilities at amortised cost 19  (102,223) (94,512)
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21 Insurance liabilities and reinsurance assets — Claims development tables

The development of insurance liabilities provides a measure of the Company's ability to estimate the ultimate
value of claims. The Company analyses actual claims development compared with previous estimates on an
accident year basis. The top half of each table, on the following pages, illustrates how estimates of ultimate
claim costs for each accident year have changed at successive year ends. The bottom half reconciles
cumulative claim costs to the amounts still recognised as liabilities. A reconciliation of the liability as included
in the statement of financial position, is also shown.

Insurance claims and loss adjustment expenses - Gross

Accldent year 2014 2012 2013 2014 2016 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 Total
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Estimate of ultimate claims costs
as adjusted for foreign exchange®:
at end of accident year 960,041 895,439 683,86 765,846 828,989 1032,494 1721272 141260 1436935 1571078  1306,540
One year later 851540 794,561 601095 635,404 758,396 941358 155140 1651732 1392,898 - 9,778,124
Two years later 830,453 736,438 526,535 596,702 703,57 899,302 1564,478 1607,006 - - 7464431
Three years later 838,920 738,092 490,991 575,336 707,627 929,40 1576,950 - - - 5857056
Fouryears later 823,294 737,499 494,451 563,653 7568 972,84 - - - - 4306699
Five years later 797,606 732,849 482,448 546,300 747,344 - - - - - 3306547
Sixyears later 755,448 735,221 481208 540,07 - - - - - - 2,51984
Seven years later 732,746 765,93 488,728 - - - - - - - 1937667
Eight years later 72020 698,907 - - - - . - - - 149,19
Nine years later 717554 - - - - - - - - - 717,554
g::::‘ estimate of cumulative 717,554 698,907 488,728 540,07 747344 972,84 1576950 1607006 1392898 1571078 1032756
Cumulative payments to date (722396)  (648,788)  (466,308) (4926) (618,720)  (766273)  (1%7952)  (934,770) (49667)  (325669)  (6,640,12)
Liability recognised (4,842) 50,19 22,420 47,488 28624 205,91 408,998 672,236 896,281 1245409 3,672,644
‘I:laab'iﬂlily in respect of pn‘or accident 03'527
Total gross llabllity included 3,776,171
Insurance claims and loss adjustment expenses — Net
Insurance claims and loss adjustment expenses - Net at Syndicate (Hiscox owned share)
. Accident yoar 201 2092 2013 204 2015 2018 2017 2018 2019 2020 Total
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Estimate of ultimate claims costs
as adjusted for foreign exchange*:
at end of accident year 693,81 590,491 559,52 585,92 618,065 722,620 917,640 785,332 773673 924906 7,170,982
One year later 642,083 515,620 500,320 50177 577,424 676,064 790,843 802,86 728922 - 5734839
Two years later 619,024 477,811 440,908 458,727 532,285 642,075 797,737 809,54 - - 477773
Three years later 617,735 454,208 408,597 43258 531687 663,282 819,751 - - - 3921778
Fouryears later 61,721 458,385 409,276 48,979 538,286 699,582 - - - - 316229
Five years later 590,3% 466,679 388,389 400,836 569,068 - - - - - 2416286
Six years later 566,81 453,984 388,644 402,068 - - - - - - 1811507
Seven years later 542,063 438,802 393,997 - - - - - - - 1374 862
Eight years later 532,983 435578 - - - - - - - - 968,561
Nine years later 529,200 - - - - - - - - - 529,200
g::::' estimate of cumulative 529200 435578 393997 402068 569,068 699582 88751 809,84 728922 924906 632236
Cumulative payments to date (535434)  (397.293) (371707)  (327,946)  (434,966) (524,06)  (642595) (55996)  (320.203) (20331)  (4,317.495)
Liability recognised (6.234) 38,285 22,290 74,22 134,102 175,456 177,56 249,249 408,789 721598 1994,741
ly.:aa!::ity inrespect of prior accident 93,667
Total net liability 2,088,408

* This foreign exchange adjustment arises from the retranslation of the estimates at each date using the exchange rate

ruling at 31 December 2020.
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22 Insurance liabilities and reinsurance assets — Movement in the year

Restated

2020 2020 2020 2019 2019 2019
Year ended 31 December Gross Reinsurance Net Gross Reinsurance Net

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Total at the beginning of the year (3,374,321) 2,679,467 (694,854) (2,797,157) 2,167,707 (629,450)
Claims and loss adjustment expenses for (1,503,378) 1,123,701 (379,677) (1,638,760) 1,332,618 (306,142)
the year
Cash paid for claims settled in the year 1,126,770  (882,273) 244,497 1,070,917  (828542) 242375
Exchange differences and other (25,242) 13,245 (11,997) (9,321) 7,684  (1,637)
movements
Total at end of year (3,776,171) 2,934,140 (842,031) (3,374,321) 2,679,467 (694,854)
Claims reported and loss adjustment (1,393,624) 1,011,623 (382,001) (1,162,194) 858,319 (303,875)
expense reserves
Claims incurred but not reported - (2,382,547) 1,922,517 (460,030) (2,212,127) 1,821,148 (390,979)
Total at end of year (3,776,171) 2,934,140 (842,031)'(3,374,321) 2,679,467 (694,854)
Current year claims and loss adjustment  (1,533,459) 1,267,206 (266,253) (1,479,194) 1,180,459 (298,735)
expenses
Over provision in respect of prior year 30,081 (143,506) (113,425) (159,556) 162,159  (7,907)
claims and loss adjustment expenses
Total claims and loss adjustment (1,503,378) 1,123,700 (379,678) (1,638,760) 1,332,618 (306,142)
expenses

23 Dividend paid to owners of the Company

A dividend of $108.5 m was paid in 2020 (2019: $nil).

24 Related party disclosures

‘Disclosed below are the related party transactions of the Company. Related party transactions of the
syndicates on which the Company participates are described in the section below and further details of these
transactions are disclosed in the accounts of these syndicates. The following statement of financial position

amounts were outstanding at year end with related

Statement of financial position assets and (liabilities)

parties:

31 December

31 D'ecember

2020 2019

$000 $000

Hiscox Plc (98,443) (129,185)
Hiscox Underwriting Group Services Ltd (288) (279)
Hiscox Ltd -
Hiscox Insurance Company (Bermuda) Limited 196,129 80
Hiscox Syndicates Limited (3,272) (1,320)
Other HSL Managed Syndicates 49,943 95,115
Hiscox Ltd Subsidiaries (intermediary services) 20,079 56,917
Hiscox Ltd Subsidiaries (insurance) 172,617 254,900
Hiscox Ltd Subsidiaries (other) (45,662) (1,514)
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24. Related party disclosures continued

The following amounts reflected in the income statement were transacted with related parties:

Net income and (expenses) reflected in the Income Statement 31 December 31 December
2020 2019
$000 $000

Hiscox Plc (1,677) 97

Hiscox Underwriting Group services Ltd 0 2

Hiscox Insurance Company (Bermuda) Limited 152,394 24,945

Hiscox Syndicates Limited (13,494) (8,805)

Other HSL. Managed Syndicates 28,536 46,763

Hiscox Ltd Subsidiaries (intermediary services) (92,648) (86,878)

Hiscox Ltd Subsidiaries (insurance) (87,606) 45,928

Hiscox Ltd Subsidiaries (other) (93,824) (94,089)

Loans are made between the Company and its parent Hiscox Plc.

Hiscox Syndicates Limited, a group company, received management fees and profit commissions for providing
a range of management services to Syndicate 33, on which Hiscox Dedicated Corporate Member Limited
participates.

Hiscox Dedicated Corporate Member has reinsurance arrangements with another group company, Hiscox
Insurance Company (Bermuda) Limited , covering the Company’s participations on the 2017, 2018, 2019 and
2020 years of accounts of both Syndicates 33 and 3624. Any business placed with Hiscox Dedicated
Corporate Member Limited is on an arm'’s length basis.

Hiscox Dedicated Corporate Member Limited is a corporate member within the Hiscox Group which owns
capacity on all open years of account of Syndicates 33 and 3624. Syndicates 33 and 3624 have a number of
related party transactions with other group companies as specified below.

Hiscox Underwriting Group Services Ltd provides administrative services on behalf of the Company on a no
profit no loss basis. Hiscox Underwriting Group Services Ltd acts as an employment service company which
employs all UK Hiscox Group staff including underwriters, claims and reinsurance staff.

Hiscox Insurance Company (Bermuda) Limited, a wholly owned direct subsidiary of Hiscox Ltd, is a Class 4
insurer in Bermuda authorised by the Bermuda Monetary Authority. it supplies some risk modeling services to
HSL. Syndicate 33 and 3624 purchase a significant amount of reinsurance from Hiscox Insurance Company
(Bermuda) Limited; such reinsurances are on an arm’s-length basis and are in the interests of all the Names
on the Syndicate.

Hiscox Insurance Company (Guernsey) Limited is a GFSC-authorised non-life insurance company which
predominantly underwrites specialist personal lines business worldwide. It has reinsurance transactions with
both Syndicate 33 and 3624; such reinsurances are on an arm’s length basis and are in the interests of all
the Names on the Syndicate.

The Hiscox Group also includes a number of intermediate holding companies and inactive companies.
Insurance intermediaries

Hiscox Underwriting Ltd is an FCA authorised non-life insurance intermediary and Lloyd's Service Company.
It currently places business with Hiscox carriers, including the Hiscox managed Syndicate 33 and 3624, as
well as non-Hiscox carriers. It is not obliged to place business with any particular carrier and these
arrangements are subject to review from time to time by Hiscox Underwriting Ltd.

Hiscox Agencies Limited, a wholly owned indirect subsidiary of Hiscox Ltd, is authorised non-life insurance
intermediary and Lloyd’s Service Company. It places business with Syndicate 33 and 3624. It is not obliged to
place business with any particular carrier and these arrangements are subject to review by Hiscox Agencies
Limited.
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24. Related party disclosures continued

Hiscox Inc., a wholly owned indirect subsidiary of Hiscox Ltd incorporated in USA (Delaware), is a US
authorised non-life insurance intermediary and Lloyd's Service Company. It places business with Syndicate
33 and 3624. It is not obliged to place business with any particular carrier and these arrangements are subject
to review by Hiscox Inc..

Hiscox Insurance Services Inc., a wholly owned indirect subsidiary of Hiscox Ltd, is a US authorised non-life
insurance intermediary and Lloyd’s Service Company. It places business with Syndicate 33. It is not obliged
to place business with any particular carrier and these arrangements are subject to review by Hiscox Insurance
Services Inc..

Hiscox Assure SAS is a regulated French insurance intermediary subject to the supervision of the French
Prudential Supervisory Authority ACPR (Autorité de contrdle prudentiel et de résolution) and Lloyd's
Coverholder. Hiscox Assure SAS is duly authorized to conduct insurance intermediation activities in other
Member States of the European Union and the European Economic Area. It places business with Syndicate
33 and 3624. It is not obliged to place business with any particular carrier and these arrangements are subject
to review by Hiscox Assure SAS.

Hiscox MGA Ltd, a wholly owned indirect subsidiary of Hiscox Ltd, is an FCA authorised non-life insurance
intermediary and Lloyd’s Coverholder. It places business with Syndicate 33 and 3624. It is not obliged to place
business with any particular carrier and these arrangements are subject to review by Hiscox MGA Ltd.

Hiscox Ltd indirectly owns a 35.4% holding in Media Insurance Brokers International Limited, the holding
company of an FCA authorised non-life insurance intermediary Media Insurance Brokers Limited which
currently places business with various carriers, including Syndicate 3624. Media Insurance Brokers Limited is
not obliged to place business with any particular carrier and these arrangements are subject to review from
time to time by Media Insurance Brokers Limited.

Hiscox Ltd indirectly owns a 29.81% holding in White Oak Underwriting Agency Limited, a FCA authorised
non-life insurance intermediary, which previously placed business with Syndicate 3624. White Oak
Underwriting Agency Limited is not obliged to place business with any particular carrier and these
arrangements are subject to review from time to time by White Oak Underwriting Agency Limited.

None of the Directors who served during this period or the prior period were underwriting Names at Lloyd's for
any open years of account.

25 Ultimate holding company

The direct holding company of Hiscox Dedicated Corporate Member Limited is Hiscox plc. The ultimate holding
company and controlling party which heads both the largest and smallest group of undertakings for which
consolidated financial statements are prepared is Hiscox Ltd, a public company incorporated and domiciled in
Bermuda, whose ordinary share capital is listed on the London Stock Exchange.

A copy of the consolidated financial statements of Hiscox Ltd may be obtained from the Company Secretary
at Chesney House, 96 Pitts Bay Road, Pembroke HM 08, Bermuda.
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26 Guarantees and contingencies

The Company and the Syndicates, on which it participates, like most other insurers, may from time to time be
involved in legal proceedings, claims and litigation in the normal course of business. The Company does not
believe that such actions will have a material effect on its profit or loss and financial condition.

The following guarantees were in place at 31 December:

e Hiscox Dedicated Corporate Member Limited (HDCM) and Hiscox Insurance Company (Bermuda)
Limited (Hiscox Bermuda) provide assets under a Security and Trust Deed charged to Lloyd's of
London, to meet any liabilities that occur from their interest in Syndicates 33 and 3624. At 31 December
2020, HDCM held $316.1 million of investments (2019: $433.4 million),$8.8 million of cash (2019:
$40.7 million) and a $241.0 million LOC (2019: $25.0 million) in favour of Lloyd’s of London under this
arrangement. At 31 December 2020, Hiscox Bermuda held $884.6 million of investments (2019:
$622.4 million),$25.9 million of cash (2019: $38.6 million) and a $25.0 million LOC (2019: $25.0 million)
in favour of Lloyd’s of London under this arrangement.

e During the year, HDCM entered into a $65 million FAL agreement under which the lending bank
provides assets on HDCM's behalf under a security and trust deed charged to Lloyd's of London as
part of the Company’s Fund's at Lloyd's provision. At 31 December 2020 the full $65 million was
utilised.

e Hiscox plc continued with its LOC and revolving credit facility with Lloyds Banking Group, as agent for
a syndicate of banks, which may be drawn in cash up to £450 million under a revolving credit facility
or LOC up to $266 million (2019: $800 million aggregate facility). The terms also provide that the facility
may be drawn in USD, GBP or EUR, or another currency with the agreement of the banks. At 31
December 2020 $266.0 million (2019: $50.0 million) was utilised by way of LOC to support the Funds
at Lloyd's requirement and $193.4 million cash drawings were outstanding (2019: $nil).

e The Council of Lloyd's has the discretionary power to call a loan from each syndicate equal to 3% of
the syndicate’s capacity at Lloyd’s

On June 30, 2020, Hiscox Insurance Company (Bermuda) Limited (HIB) executed a merger with Hiscox
Capital Ltd. (“HCL") (the “merger”) . HIB and HCL are wholly owned subsidiaries of the Parent, and are
consolidated by the Parent which supports the existence of common control. Pursuant to the terms of the
Merger Agreement between HIB and HCL, subsequent to the merger, HIB is the surviving entity, and all the
shares of HCL were cancelled without repayment of capital.’. Hiscox Dedicated Corporate Member
Limited’s(HDCM) quota share arrangement changed from HCL to HIB on June 30 2020.

27 Part Vil transfer

The United Kingdom ceased to be a member of the European Union on 31 January 2020. The transition period
to 31 December 2020 is a period agreed in the UK-EU Withdrawal Agreement in which the UK was no longer
a member of the EU but continued to be subject to EU rules and remained a member of the single market and
customs union.

Hiscox implemented the Lloyd’s Market solution of writing all new and renewal EEA business through Lloyd's
Brussels since January 2019. Hiscox, as described below, implemented the Lloyd’'s Market solution for all
legacy EEA business which is a Part VIl of all legacy EEA business from Hiscox Syndicates to Lloyd’s Brussels.
This arrangement enables Hiscox to continue to write new EEA business and service our legacy EEA business.

On 30 December 2020, the Members and former Members of the Syndicates, as comprised for each of the
relevant years of account between 1993 and April 2019 (or October 2020 in the case of German reinsurance),
transferred ali relevant policies (and related liabilities) underwritten by them for those years of account to
Lloyd’s Insurance Company S.A. (Lloyd's Europe), in accordance with Part VIl of the Financial Services and
Markets Act 2000. On the same date, the Members of the Syndicates entered into a 100% quota share
reinsurance agreement whereby Lloyd’s Europe reinsured all risks on the same policies back to the relevant
open years of account of the Syndicates which wrote the transferring policies and/or inherited liabilities on
transferring policies through reinsurance to close of earlier years of account.
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27. Part VIl transfer continued

Following the sanction of the scheme by the High Court on 30 November 2020, the scheme took effect on 30
December 2020 and the Members and former Members of the Syndicates transferred the impacted EEA
policies and related liabilities to Lloyd's Europe, together with cash of $122.0 million in respect of the company.
On the same date, under the reinsurance agreement, Lloyd's Europe reinsured the same risks back, together
with an equal amount of cash of net $122.0 million. The combined effect of the two transactions had no
economic impact for the Syndicates, and accordingly there is no impact on the Company’s income statement
and no net impact on the balance sheet. Outstanding debtor and creditor balances in respect of the transferred
business that were previously classified as arising out of direct reinsurance operations have been reclassified
as arising out of reinsurance operations

28 Post Balance Sheet Event

Subsequent events have been evaluated up to and including April 21, 2021, being the date that these financial
statements were available to be issued.

On February 13 until February 17, 2021, a major winter and ice storm (“Winter Storm Uri") had widespread
impact across the United States, Mexico, and Canada. Management is currently evaluating the impact of the
loss estimate as a result of Winter Storm Uri.

On April 1, 2021, Hiscox Syndicates Limited as managing agent for Lloyd’s Syndicate 3624 and Hiscox
Insurance Company (Bermuda) Limited entered into a healthcare loss portfolio transfer reinsurance
agreement. The consideration paid for this arrangement is $83m and under this agreement, the reinsurer will

. assume the liabilities for up to $125m. The effective date for the reinsurance agreement is 1 April 2021 and as
at that date, the liabilities, including paid claims, is estimated at $89m. Hiscox Dedicated Corporate Member
Limited (HDCM) has full benefit of this arrangement due to its participation in Syndicate 3624, subject to its
corporate member reinsurance with Hiscox Insurance Company (Bermuda) Limited.
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